
Executive Committee | Agenda
10 a.m., Wednesday, September 17, 2025

St. Edward’s Mabee Ballroom
3001 S. Congress Ave, Austin, Texas 78704

A closed executive session may be held on any of the above agenda items when legally justified pursuant to Subchapter D 
of the Texas Open Meetings Act (Texas Government Code Chapter 551).

Judge Brett Bray, Blanco County, Chair
Council Member Doug Weiss, City of Pflugerville

1st Vice Chair
Judge Ron Cunningham, Llano County, 2nd Vice Chair 

and Parliamentarian
Mayor Pro Tem Steve Hougen, City of Granite Shoals,

Secretary
Mayor Lew White, City of Lockhart, Immediate Past 

Chair
Mayor Kirk Watson, City of Austin
Commissioner Clara Beckett, Bastrop County
Council Member Kerry Fossler, City of Bastrop
Council Member Kevin Hight, City of Bee Cave
Commissioner Joe Don Dockery, Burnet County
Judge Bryan Wilson, Burnet County
Judge Hoppy Haden, Caldwell County

Commissioner Clint Sternadel, Fayette County
Council Member Ron Garland, City of Georgetown
Commissioner Walt Smith, Hays County
Council Member David McDonald, City of Leander
Commissioner Steven Knobloch, Lee County
Council Member Frank Ortega, City of Round Rock
Mayor Jane Hughson, City of San Marcos
Council Member Cathy Meek, City of Smithville
Judge Andy Brown, Travis County 
Commissioner Ann Howard, Travis County 
Commissioner Russ Boles, Williamson County
Commissioner Cynthia Long, Williamson County
Senator Pete Flores
Representative Vikki Goodwin
Representative Caroline Harris-Davila

1. Call to Order and Opening Remarks by the Chair

2. Pledge to U.S. and Texas Flags

3. Recognition of Guests

4. Consider Approving Minutes for the August 13, 2025 meeting 
  

5. Consider Approval of Resolution Authorizing Application to Renew Academy License
David Bertling, Director of the Regional Law Enforcement Academy

6. Consider Approval of CAPCOG FY 2026-2027 TCEQ Solid Waste Grant Application to TCEQ
Charles Simon, Director of Regional Planning and Services

7. Consider Approval of Older American Acts Subgrants
Jennifer Scott, Director of Aging Services

8. Consider Approval of Contract with the City of Hutto for Remote Basic Peace Officer Course
David Bertling, Director of the Regional Law Enforcement Academy 

9. Initial Review of Draft Changes to CAPCOG By-Laws
Council Member Doug Weiss, Chair of By-Laws Committee

10. Consider Adoption of the 2026 CAPCOG Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP)
Martin Ritchey, Director of Homeland Security 

w Academy License



Executive Committee Agenda | September 17, 2025 | Page 2 of 2

11. Consider Approval of Appointments to Advisory Committees
Andrew Hoekzema, Director of Administrative Services

12. Staff Reports

  13. Executive Director Report
Chris Miller, Executive Director

14. Adjourn 



Executive Committee | MINUTES
10 a.m., Wednesday, August 13, 2025

CAPCOG Lantana Room
6800 Burleson Road

Building 310, Suite 165
Austin, Texas 78744

A closed executive session may be held on any of the above agenda items when legally justified pursuant to Subchapter D 
of the Texas Open Meetings Act (Texas Government Code Chapter 551).

Present (20)
Judge Brett Bray, Blanco County, Chair
Council Member Doug Weiss, City of Pflugerville
1st Vice Chair
Judge Ron Cunningham, Llano County, 2nd Vice 
Chair and Parliamentarian
Mayor Pro Tem Steve Hougen, City of Granite 
Shoals, Secretary
Mayor Lew White, City of Lockhart, Immediate Past 
Chair
Council Member Kerry Fossler, City of Bastrop
Council Member Kevin Hight, City of Bee Cave
Judge Bryan Wilson, Burnet County
Commissioner Joe Don Dockery, Burnet County
Judge Hoppy Haden, Caldwell County   
Commissioner Clint Sternadel, Fayette County
Council Member Ron Garland, City of Georgetown
Judge Hoppy Haden, Caldwell County

Commissioner Clint Sternadel, Fayette County
Council Member Ron Garland, City of Georgetown
Council Member David McDonald, City of Leander
Council Member David McDonald, City of Leander
Mayor Jane Hughson, City of San Marcos
Council Member Cathy Meek, City of Smithville
Commissioner Cynthia Long, Williamson County 

Absent (8)
Mayor Kirk Watson, City of Austin
Commissioner Clara Beckett, Bastrop County
Judge Andy Brown, Travis County 
Commissioner Ann Howard, Travis County 
Commissioner Russ Boles, Williamson County 
Senator Pete Flores
Representative Vikki Goodwin
Representative Caroline Harris Davila

1. Call to Order and Opening Remarks by the Chair
Judge Brett Bray, Chair, called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m.

2. Pledge to U.S. and Texas Flags
Judge Bray led the members in reciting pledges to the US and Texas flags.

3. Recognition of Guests
Brandon Simon of Senator Cruz’s Office was present
A representative from Senator Cornyn’s Office was present

4. Consider Approving Minutes for the July 9, 2025 Meeting
Mayor Hughson requested item number 5 from the July 9, 2025 minutes reflect the Executive Committee 
Board meeting changing from September 10th to September 17th.  Judge Haden made a motion to approve 
the July 9, 2025 minutes, and he amended his motion to include the correction.  Mayor Pro Tem Hougen 
seconded the motion. 

5. Consider Approving Changing the Date of the CAPCOG Executive Committee Board Meeting from 
October 8, 2025 to October 15, 2025 due to the 103rd Annual County Judges and Commissioners 
Association of Texas Conference

Chris Miller, Executive Director



Executive Committee Agenda | August 13, 2025 | Page 2 of 4 

Mr. Miller requested the Board vote on considering changing the October 8, 2025 Executive Committee 
Board meeting to October 15, 2025.  Commissioner Smith made the motion to change the Executive 
Committee Board meeting to October 15, 2025.  Mayor Hughson seconded the motion.  The motion to 
change the Executive Committee meeting to October 15, 2025 passed unanimously.   
 

6. Consider accepting the Quarterly Investment Report  
Silvia Alvarado, Director of Finance 

 Ms. Alvarado presented the Quarterly Investment Report. Mayor Hughson made a motion to accept the 
Quarterly Investment Report.  Mayor White seconded the motion.  The motion to accept the Quarterly 
Investment Report passed unanimously.  

 
7. Consider Recommending Approval of the FY 2026 Annual Budget to the General Assembly 

    Andrew Hoekzema, Director of Administrative Services 
Mr. Hoekzema made a recommendation for approval of the FY 2026 Annual Budget to the General 
Assembly. Judge Bray requested an explanation of the amount of the revenue.  Mr. Hoekzema explained 
the amount of the revenue.  Judge Bray made a statement regarding the continuation of BPOC.  He 
explained that CAPCOG should continue the BPOC Program.  Mayor Hughson asked if the amount of the 
revenue would be explained to the General Assembly.  Mr. Hoekzema said, it would. 
 
Judge Cunningham made a motion to recommend the budget to the General Assembly.  Mayor White 
seconded the motion.  The motion to recommend the budget to the General Assembly passed 
unanimously.   
 

8. Consider Adopting a Proclamation Recognizing September 2025 as Senior Center Awareness Month in 
the CAPCOG Region. 
    Jennifer Scott, Director of Aging Services  
Ms. Smith requested adopting a proclamation to recognize September 2025 as Senior Center Awareness 
Month in the CAPCOG Region. Commissioner Long made a motion to approve the adoption of the 
proclamation recognizing September as Senior Center Awareness Month. Commissioner Dockery 
seconded the motion.  The adoption of the proclamation recognizing September 2025 as Senior Center 
Awareness Month passed unanimously.  
 
 

9. Consider Approving Spend-Down Plan for FY 2025 Older Americans Act Funding 
    Jennifer Scott, Director of Aging Services  
Ms. Smith requested approval of the Spend-Down Plan for FY 2025 for the Older Americans Act Funding.  
Judge Bray noted, it’s a culture shift since we are asked to spend so quickly.  Ms. Smith agreed.  Judge 
Wilson asked if any of the funds being utilized to assist Burnet County and Williamson County with flood 
damage.  Ms. Smith said she is waiting on a respond from HHSC to see if exactly where the funds will be 
used. 
 Commissioner Smith made a motion to approve the Spend-Down Plan for FY 2025 for the Older 
Americans Act Funding. Council Member Fossler seconded the motion. The approval of the Spend-Down 
Plan for FY 2025 for the Older Americans Act Funding passed unanimously. 

 
 
 
 



Executive Committee Agenda | August 13, 2025 | Page 3 of 4 

10. Consider Adoption of a Proclamation Declaring September 2025, as CAPCOG Preparedness Month
    Martin Ritchey, Director of Homeland Security 
 Mr. Ritchey requested the adoption of a proclamation declaring September 2025 as CAPCOG Preparedness 
Month. Commissioner Dockery made a motion to approve the adoption of the proclamation declaring 
September 2025 as CAPCOG Preparedness Month. Council Member Garland seconded the motion.  The 
motion to proclamation declaring September 2025 as CAPCOG Preparedness Month passed unanimously. 
 

11. Consider Adopting a Proclamation Recognizing September 22-26, 2025 as Falls Prevention Awareness 
Week 
    Jennifer Scott, Director of Aging Services  
Ms. Scott requested adoption a proclamation recognizing September 22-26, 2025 as Falls Prevention 
Awareness Week.  Commissioner Long made motion to recognize September 22-26, 2025 as Falls 
Prevention Awareness Week. Mayor Hughson seconded the motion.  The motion declaring September 22-
26, 2025 as Falls Prevention Awareness Week passed unanimously.  
 

12. Consider Recommending Nominating Committee Members to the General Assembly    
    Chris Miller, Executive Director  
 Mr. Miller presented the nominating committee members to the General Assembly.  The Board 
recommended Commissioner Long, Judge Cunningham, Commissioner Dockery, Mayor Hughson, Leander 
Mayor Christine DeLisle, and Commissioner Debbie Ingalsbe serve on the 2025-2026 nominating 
committee.  

 
13. Consider Approving Appointments to Advisory Committees  

Andrew Hoekzema, Director of Administrative Services  
Mr. Hoekzema presented the vacancies to the advisory committee.  Council Member Fossler nominated 
Dori Kelly to serve on Economic Development Advisory Committee (EDAC).  Council Member made a 
motion to approve Dori Kelly serving on EDAC.  Mayor Hughson seconded the motion.  The nomination of 
Dori Kelly to serve on EDAC passed unanimously.  
 

14. Executive Committee Member Information Sharing 
Judge Wilson expressed his appreciation to CAPCOG, TPWD, and other agencies for assisting with the flood 
recovery assistance.   
 

15. Staff Reports 
    Martin Ritchey, Director of Homeland Security  
Mr. Ritchey invited members to attend the CAPCOG Regional Warning and Alert Strategy Practicum. He 
mentioned the 85% penetration on the cell phone list. He spoke about he and Mason Canales attending a 
Regional PIO Meeting. Lastly he mentioned the Capital Area Law Enforcement Executive Association.  
 

16. Executive Director Report 
Chris Miller, Executive Director 

Mr. Miller spoke about legislative outreach.  He appreciated the feedback received.  The feedback was 
forward to all the CAPCOG legislative representatives.  Chairs of the Flood Relief Committee, Senator Perry 
and Representative King also received the feedback.  Martin is planning to reinstitute the Flood Forecasting 
Sub-Committee.  It will include flood management and flood control.   
 



Executive Committee Agenda | August 13, 2025 | Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 
 
___________________________________   _____________________________ 
Mayor Pro Tem Steve Hougen, Secretary    Date 
Capital Area Council of Governments 
Executive Committee 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING  
 

MEETING DATE: September 17, 2025 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  5. Consider Approval of Resolution Authorizing Application to Renew Academy License 
 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF ITEM: 
CAPCOG’s Regional Law Enforcement Academy (RLEA) was created to provide a central, managed method of 
delivering professional law enforcement training throughout the ten-county region. As a law enforcement 
academy, CAPCOG is authorized by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE) to offer licensing courses 
and continuing education courses for peace officers, jailers, and telecommunicators. 
 
CAPCOG’s current academy license expires on March 31, 2026, and TCOLE requires that entities applying for a 
license renewal have a resolution from the governing board on file authorizing the application. This item 
authorizes the Executive Director to submit an application for renewal of CAPCOG’s license. 
 
THIS ITEM REPRESENTS A: 

 New issue, project, or purchase 
 Routine, regularly scheduled item 
 Follow-up to a previously discussed item 
 Special item requested by board member 
 Other 

 
PRIMARY CONTACT/STAFF MEMBER:   TBD  
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT: 
 Total estimated cost:  $1,000 
 Source of Funds: Office of the Governor Regional Training Academy Grant 
 Is item already included in fiscal year budget?  Yes   No 
 Does item represent a new expenditure?  Yes   No 
 Does item represent a pass-through purchase?  Yes   No 
 If so, for what city/county/etc.?        

 
PROCUREMENT:  N/A 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
Adopt a resolution authorizing the Executive Director to apply for renewal of CAPCOG’s Law Enforcement 
Academy license 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Resolution authorizing application of an application for renewal of CAPCOG’s Law Enforcement Academy license 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS NOT ATTACHED (to be sent prior to meeting or will be a handout at the meeting): 
None 



  Page 1 of 1 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION TO RENEW 

THE CAPITAL AREA COUNICL OF GOVERNMENTS LAW ENFORCEMENT 

ACADEMY LICENSE 

 

WHEREAS, the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) operates a Law Enforcement 
Academy under a license from the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE), allowing it 
to providing licensing courses and continuing education for peace officers, jailers, and 
telecommunicators; and 
 
WHEREAS, CAPCOG’s current Academy license expires on March 31, 2026; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) Executive Committee finds it in 
the best interest of the citizens of Region 12 that its Law Enforcement Academy continue to be 
operated beyond March 31, 2026; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the CAPCOG Executive Committee authorizes CAPCOG’s 
Executive Director to submit an application to renew its Law Enforcement Academy license. 
 

Resolution adopted by the Capital Area Council of Governments Executive Committee on this 
17th day of September 2025. 

 
 
 
 

___________________________________ __________________________________ 
Judge Brett Bray, Chair    Mayor Pro Tem Steve Hougen, Secretary 
Executive Committee    Executive Committee 
Capital Area Council of Governments   Capital Area Council of Governments   
 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING  

MEETING DATE: September 17, 2025    

AGENDA ITEM: 6. Approval of CAPCOG FY 2026 - 2027 TCEQ Solid Waste Grant Application to the TCEQ  
 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF ITEM: 
At the beginning of each biennium, CAPCOG must submit an application to the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) in order to receive funding to operate its solid waste program. The application is effectively the 
proposed budget for CAPCOG’s solid waste program for the FY2026/2027 biennium and includes a resolution of the 
Executive Committee which authorizes the application as well as acknowledges that all activities and related 
expenses included in the application will serve to implement the goals, objectives, and recommendations of the 
Regional Solid Waste Management Plan 
 
The amount allocated to CAPCOG for the solid waste program for the FY2026/2027 biennium is $718,994.00 – an 
increase of $13,126 over the FY2024/2025 allocation. The funding received from TCEQ covers the cost of the 
program including all staff support for planning, technical assistance, and implementation projects of the grant 
program.  
 
Although it is not a part of the TCEQ application, the proposed timeline for the CAPCOG solid waste grants is 
included with this item for your information. 
 
THIS ITEM REPRESENTS A: 

 New issue, project, or purchase 
 Routine, regularly scheduled item 
 Follow-up to a previously discussed item 
 Special item requested by board member 
 Other 

 
PRIMARY CONTACT/STAFF MEMBER: Charles Simon, Director, Regional Planning and Services  
 Ken May, Regional Programs Manager 

    

BUDGETARY IMPACT: 
Total estimated cost:  $718,994.00 
Source of Funds:  TCEQ 

 Is item already included in fiscal year budget?  Yes   No 
 Does item represent a new expenditure?  Yes   No 
 Does item represent a pass-through purchase?  Yes   No 
 If so, for what city/county/etc.?        

PROCUREMENT: N/A 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
Consider adopting a resolution to authorize submitting the FY2026/2027 solid waste application to the TCEQ. 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 

1. Memo with additional information regarding the FY 2026-2027 TCEQ Solid Waste Program Application  
2. Resolution authorizing submittal of the FY 2026-2027 Solid Waste Program Application 
3. FY 2026-2027 TCEQ Solid Waste Program Application, Forms 1, 2, & 5 

 



A RESOLUTION OF THE CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
APPROVING THE FY 2026/2027

SOLID WASTE PROGRAM APPLICATION

Whereas, the mission of the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) is to be the catalyst 
for regional planning through effective utilization of resources; and 

Whereas, management of solid waste is and will continue to be a critical issue facing the 
CAPCOG region; and,

Whereas, funds for the coordination of region-wide solid waste management programs have 
been made available by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ); and,

Whereas, the Executive Committee of CAPCOG finds that all activities and related expenses 
included in this application will serve to implement the goals, objectives, and recommendations of the 
regional solid waste management plan; and,

Whereas, CAPCOG will comply with the financial program reporting requirements of the TCEQ 
and the State of Texas; and,

Whereas, grant funds will be used only for the purposes for which they are provided

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Executive Committee of CAPCOG has reviewed, approves of, and 
hereby authorizes preparation and submittal of CAPCOG’s FY 2026/2027 Solid Waste Program 
Application to the TCEQ.

Resolution adopted by the CAPCOG Executive Committee on this 17th day of September 2025.

_____________________________________ ___________________________________

Judge Brett Bray, Chair Executive Committee Mayor Pro Tem Dr. Steve Hougen, Secretary
Capital Area Council of Governments Capital Area Council of Governments



Approve CAPCOG FY 2026/2027 TCEQ Solid Waste Grant Application to the TCEQ | September 17, 2025 | Page 1 of 3

Form 1. Cover Page 

CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS - #12 

FY26/27 

Performing Party FEI#: 74-1689381 

Funding Amount For 
FY26 $359,497 1st Year: 

Funding Amount For 
FY27 $359,497 2nd Year: 

Total Biennium Amount: FY26/27 $ 718,994.00 

Required Attachments to the Application 

* A copy of the latest membership list for the COG's Solid Waste Advisory Committee. 

* State Coordinating Agency Letter /Federal Cognizant Agency Letter indicating indirect/fringe benefits cost rates, and/ or a letter of 
proposed rates. 

Certifications 

The person signing this Application hereby certifies that: 

1. He/she has authority from the COG to sign the Application; 

2. The information contained in this application is, to the best of his/her knowledge and understanding, complete and accurate; 

3. This Application, along with any changes or addenda, shall become a binding part of the contract terms upon approval by TCEQ; and 

4. This Application has no false statements and that signing this Application with a false statement is a material breach and TCEQ may 
terminate the grant; 

Signature/Title Certification 

Title: Executive Director 

Typed/Printed Name: Chris Miller 

Signature: 

Date: 



Approve CAPCOG FY 2026/2027 TCEQ Solid Waste Grant Application to the TCEQ | September 17, 2025 | Page 2 of 3

Form 2. Resolution 

CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS - #12 

FY26/27 

A signed resolution of the COG governing body approving this application must be provided in order 
for your grant application to be processed. The following points must be included in the resolution, at 
a minimum: 

1. The governing body of the COG has reviewed this application and authorizes its submittal to the TCEQ; 

2. The governing body of the COG finds that all activities and related expenses included in this application will serve to 
implement the goals, objectives, and recommendations of the Regional Solid Waste Management Plan; 

3. The COG will comply with all applicable state and local laws and regulations pertaining to the use of state funds, 
including laws concerning the procurement of goods and services, competitive purchasing requirements and financial 
and program reporting requirements; and 

4. Grant funds will be used only for the purposes for which they are provided. 

To complete your application, please remove this page and replace it with a signed resolution of your 
COG's governing body. 



Approve CAPCOG FY 2026/2027 TCEQ Solid Waste Grant Application to the TCEQ | September 17, 2025 | Page 3 of 3

Form 5. Budget 

CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS - #12 

FY26/27 

Proposed Budget Proposed Budget Biennium Total 
Budget 

Budget Category 
FY26 FY27 FY26/27 

1. Personnel/Salary ( Form 5 A) $ 106,607.83 $ 111,405.18 $ 218,013.00 

2. Travel (Form 5 B) $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 2,400.00 

3. Equipment (Form 5 C) $ - $ - $ -

4. Contractual (Form 5 D) $ - $ - $ -
5. Other (Form 5 E) $ 45,113.63 $ 49,722.66 $ 94,836.29 

6. Implementation Projects (Form 5 F) $ 119,643.47 $ 107,587.99 $ 227,231.47 

7. Supplies (Form 5 G) $ 100.00 $ 100.00 $ 200.00 

8. Fringe Benefits (Form 5 H) $ 58,868.84 $ 61,517.94 $ 120,386.78 

9. Total Direct Costs (sum ofl-8) $ 331,533.77 $ 331,533.77 $ 663,067.54 

10. Indirect Costs (Form 5 H) $ 27,963.23 $ 27,963.23 $ 55,926.46 

11. Total Costs (sum of 9-10) $ 359,497.00 $ 359,497.00 $ 718,994.00 

12. Fringe Benefit Rate: 55.220% 55.220% 55.220% 

13. Indirect Cost Rate: 26.230% 26.230% 26.230% 

Authorized Signature: 
(only needed for revisions and must be an 

authorized representative listed on Form 4) 

Date: 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING DATE: September 17, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: 7. Consider Approving Older Americans Act Subgrants 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF ITEM: 
As the Area Agency on Aging (AAA) for the Capital Area, CAPCOG receives funding from the federal government 
and the state to provide senior nutrition services and supportive services, among a variety of other services under 
the Older Americans Act (OAA). 
 
Earlier this year, CAPCOG conducted a request for applications (RFA) for subgrants for congregate meal services, 
home-delivered meal services, senior center operations, and transportation demand response services. Following 
a review of the applications, and based on estimates of funding availability, staff are recommending awarding the 
following subgrants for fiscal year (FY) 2026: 
 

1. Capital Area Rural Transportation System (CARTS): $105,000 for transportation demand response 
services in the non-urbanized area of the CAPCOG region; 

2. City of Austin Parks and Recreation Department (COA-PARD): $96,000 for transportation demand 
response services in the City of Austin; 

3. Combined Community Action Inc. (CCA): $1,446,675 for congregate meal services, home-delivered meal 
services, and senior center operations in Bastrop, Blanco, Caldwell, Fayette, Hays, and Lee Counties; 

4. Community Action Inc. of Central Texas (CAI): $20,000 for senior center operations in San Marcos; 
5. Hill Country Community Action Association, Inc. (HCCAA): $203,006 for congregate meal services, home-

delivered meal services, and senior center operations in Llano County; 
6. Hill Country Senior Activity Center (HCSC): $24,000 for senior center operations in Dripping Springs; 
7. Meals on Wheels Central Texas (MOWCT): $1,349,996 for congregate meal and home-delivered meal 

services in Travis County; 
8. Opportunities for Williamson and Burnet County (OWBC): $1,360,385 for congregate meal services, 

home-delivered meal services, and senior center operations in Burnet and Llano Counties; 
9. Senior Connections (SC): $40,000 for senior center operations in Fayette County; and 
10. WellMed Foundation (WF): $40,000 for senior center operations in Fayette County. 

 
The attached memo describes the basis for these recommendations and provides details on how these amounts 
compare to the amounts requested and the amounts previously awarded. 
 
THIS ITEM REPRESENTS A: 

 New issue, project, or purchase 
 Routine, regularly scheduled item 
 Follow-up to a previously discussed item 
 Special item requested by board member 
 Other 

 
PRIMARY CONTACT/STAFF MEMBER: Jennifer Scott, Director of Aging Services 



BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Total estimated cost: $4,681,061 
Source of Funds: Federal and State Older Americans Act Funding, State General Revenue, City of Austin 

Congregate Meal Funding, and St. David’s Foundation Funding 
Is item already included in fiscal year budget?  Yes   No 

 Does item represent a new expenditure?  Yes   No 
 Does item represent a pass-through purchase?  Yes   No 
 If so, for what city/county/etc.?  10 entities with service areas covering the 10-county region 

PROCUREMENT: N/A – Request for Applications 

ACTION REQUESTED: Consider Approving Older Americans Act Subgrants as Described in Attached Memoi 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Memo on Recommended Older Americans Act Subgrants 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS NOT ATTACHED (to be sent prior to meeting or will be a handout at the meeting): none 



6800 Burleson Road, Building 310, Suite 165
Austin, Texas 78744

Ph: 512-916-6000 Fax: 512-916-6001
www.capcog.org

BASTROP BLANCO BURNET CALDWELL FAYETTE HAYS LEE LLANO TRAVIS WILLIAMSON

Recommended Older American Act Subgrants | September 3, 2025 | Page 1 of 8

MEMORANDUM
September 3, 2025

TO: Executive Committee

FROM: Jennifer Scott, Director of Aging Services

RE: Recommended Older Americans Act Subgrants

This memo provides details about staff’s fiscal year (FY) FY 2026 Older American Act (OAA) subgrant 
recommendations.

Summary of Funding Recommendations

The table below provides a list of each applicant, the services they provide, their service area, and their 
recommended FY 2026 funding. Additional details are provided for each service later in this memo.

Table 1. FY 2026 Funding Recommendation Summary

Organization Services Area or Location FY 2026 Funding 
Recommendation

Capital Area Rural Transportation System 
(CARTS)

Transportation Non-Urbanized Areas of 
CAPCOG

$105,000

City of Austin Parks and Recreation 
Department (COA-PARD)

Transportation Austin $96,000

Community Action Inc. of Central Texas 
(CAI)

SCO San Marcos $20,000

Combined Community Action, Inc. (CCA) SCO, CM, HDM Bastrop, Blanco, Caldwell, 
Fayette, Hays, and Lee Counties

$1,446,675

Hill Country Community Action 
Association, Inc. (HCCAA)

SCO, CM, HDM Llano County $203,006

Hill Country Senior Activity Center (HCSC) SCO Dripping Springs $20,000
Meals on Wheels Central Texas (MOWCT) CM, HDM Travis County $1,349,996
Opportunities for Williamson and Burnet 
Counties (OWBC)

SCO, CM, HDM Burnet and Williamson Counties $1,360,385

Senior Connections (SC) SCO Schulenburg and Flatonia $40,000
WellMed Foundation (WF) SCO Austin $40,000
TOTAL n/a n/a $4,681,061



Recommended Older American Act Subgrants | September 3, 2025 | Page 2 of 8 

*SCO = Senior Center Operations; CM = Congregate Meals; HDM = Home-Delivered Meals

Request for Application Process 

In May 2025, CAPCOG/AAA issued a request for applications (RFA) for funding for OAA nutrition services, senior 
center operations, and transportation demand response services for FY 2026 and FY 2027, with applications due 
7/7/2025. The RFA advised all applicants to expect a 9% reduction in funding for FY 2026 relative to FY 2025, and 
a 34% reduction for FY 2027 for all services other than congregate meals. CAPCOG/AAA staff provided 
substantial technical assistance to applicants to ensure that the applications would qualify for consideration. 
Ultimately, CAPCOG/AAA received applications from 10 organizations, including one new applicant  - Senior 
Connections – which runs two senior centers in Fayette County. 

CAPCOG/AAA staff convened a review committee consisting of three Aging Advisory Council (AAC) members and 
two CAPCOG staff members that do not work directly on these programs to provide an independent review of 
the applications. The result of this review was to confirm that all applicants should qualify for consideration for a 
funding recommendation. 

To prepare funding recommendations, CAPCOG/AAA staff with experience directly working with the program 
then performed a detailed review of the funding requests based on a variety of factors, including: 

 Estimates of FY 2026 funding availability; 
 FY 2025 funding awarded (including the supplemental FY 2025 funding awarded in August 2025); 
 The relative importance of each service type within the scope of the region’s Area Plan; 
 The number of targeted individuals within each organization’s service area; 
 The proposed and existing costs of providing the service; 
 Other resources available to each organization to support their programs; and 
 The review committee members’ evaluations of applications. 

Funds Available for FY 2026 

AAA’s FY 2026 budget included a total of $485,980 of OAA Title III-B (Supportive Services) funding for grants for 
transportation demand response services and senior center operations. The total III-B funding budgeted for FY 
2026 was $2.3 million for supportive services in FY 2026, including $729 transferred from III-C1 congregate meal 
funding. This funding can also be used for a wide range of activities, including direct services provided by AAA 
staff such as information, referral, and assistance (IRA) services, care coordination, legal assistance, public 
information, data management, ombudsman services, and training education, as well as contracted services 
such as residential repair, health maintenance services, and mental health services. 

AAA’s FY 2026 budget also includes a total of $4,256,695 for nutrition services, including funding from OAA Title 
III-C1 (congregate meals), OAA Title III-C2 (home-delivered meals), the Nutrition Service Incentive Program 
(NSIP), state general revenue, City of Austin, and St. David’s Foundation. A portion of the III-C1 and III-C2 funds 
are used for data management related to congregate and home-delivered meals, while the rest of the funding is 
dedicated specifically for those services as subgrants. The table below summarizes the nutrition funding 
available from each source for subgrants. 



Recommended Older American Act Subgrants | September 3, 2025 | Page 3 of 8 

Table 2. Nutrition Funding Available for Grants, FY 2026 

Funding Source Geographic Restriction Congregate 
Meals 

Home-Delivered 
Meals

Total 

III-C1 (FY 2026) All 10 counties $1,057,974 $0 $1,057,974 
III-C2 (FY 2026) All 10 counties $0 $1,804,463 $1,804,463 
NSIP (FY 2026) All 10 counties $0 $346,949 $346,949
NSIP (FY 2025) All 10 counties $0 $346,949 $346,949 
SGR (FY 2026) All 10 counties $0 $40,531 $40,531 
City of Austin (FY 2026) City of Austin $367,134 $0 $367,134
St. David’s Foundation
(unexpended balances)

Bastrop, Caldwell, Hays, Travis, 
and Williamson Counties

$0 $292,695 $292,695 

TOTAL n/a $1,425,108 $2,831,587 $4,256,695 

As a result of extra funding CAPCOG received from FY 2020 – FY 2024 related to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
CAPCOG had a significant amount of “carry-forward” funding going into FY 2025. This funding enabled CAPCOG 
to support a higher level of spending on these services in FY 2025 than our normal annual funding would. In 
order to transition to a lower level of annual funding over time, CAPCOG had planned to carry-forward $2.8 
million in III-C1 and III-C2 funds into FY 2026 and then gradually reduce the amount of funds awarded for 
nutrition services over several years. However, the Texas Health and Human Services (HHSC) has withheld $1.9 
million in nutrition funds previously awarded in FY 2023 and FY 2024 that CAPCOG was counting on in our FY 
2025 budget. This was due to problems HHSC encountered providing the state-level match required for those 
funds extra carry-over funds. In addition, HHSC indicated that it may not allow CAPCOG to carry forward any FY 
2025 III-C1 or III-C2 funding into FY 2026 at all. In order to avoid losing what remained of the carry-forward, in 
August, CAPCOG awarding an extra $960k in nutrition funds to MOWCT and OWBC for FY 2025, making this 
funding unavailable to award in FY 2026. 

As a result of these two factors, there is substantially less senior nutrition funding available for FY 2026 than was 
awarded in FY 2025. We expect further reductions in FY 2027 as well: the St. David’s Foundation funding and 
projected FY 2025 carry-forward NSIP funding represent one-time funding that would not be available in FY 
2027. 

Transportation Demand Response 

CAPCOG received applications from 2 organizations for transportation demand response services  – the Capital 
Area Rural Transportation System (CARTS) and the City of Austin Parks and Recreation Department (COA-PARD). 

 Both organizations have been receiving funding from CAPCOG for these services for many years, but as a 
contractor rather than a subrecipient. As a subrecipient, these organizations are required to provide 
match and are subject to monitoring. 

 While total funding requested was $171,000, based on the goals in the area plan, we are recommending 
allocating additional funding to this service category for a total of $201,000. 

 This additional funding comes from proposed reductions in senior center operations funding relative to 
our initial planning estimates. These funds would be redirected to CARTS in order to help sustain a 
significant expansion in senior transportation services that has occurred over the past year. 



Recommended Older American Act Subgrants | September 3, 2025 | Page 4 of 8 

The table below shows the funding awarded in FY 2025 and the details for the FY 2026 request and 
recommendations. 

Table 3. Transportation Demand Response Funding Recommendation Details 

Organization FY 2024 
Exp.

FY 2025 
Initial 
Limit 

FY 2025 
Supplemental 

Award

FY 2026 
Eligible 

Costs

FY 2026 
Request

FY 2026 
Recommended 

Award 
CARTS $75,864 $70,000 $58,744 $743,750 $75,000 $105,000 
COA-PARD $95,950 $95,000 $0 $353,540 $96,000 $96,000
SUBTOTAL $171,814 $165,000 $58,744 $1,097,290 $171,000 $201,000 

 

In addition to setting overall funding amounts, the contracts for transportation will also need to establish a fixed 
“per-trip” rate to use as the basis for reimbursement. CAPCOG/AAA will then reimburse each provider based on 
the # of eligible trips they report. 

Each applicant submitted a “rate-setting” worksheet that includes calculations of their average cost per trip that 
included average costs per trip for FY 2024 and projected costs per trip for FY 2026. CAPCOG/AAA staff used this 
information and the cost of taxi service in Austin as a point of comparison to decide on the recommended rates 
for each provider. Based on this information, staff are recommending a reimbursable rate of $10 per trip for the 
COA-PARD and $11 per trip for CARTS based on the extra distance required in rural areas. For comparison, the 
base fare for Austin taxi service is about $10 for a 3-mile trip - $2.50 per trip base fare plus $2.41 per mile. 

The table below summarizes the transportation rates proposed for FY 2026. 

Table 4. Transportation Rates 

Organization FY 2024 Avg. 
Cost per Ride 

FY 2024 
Reimb. Rate

FY 2025 
Reimb. Rate 

FY 2026 Avg. 
Cost per Ride 

FY 2026 Reimb. Rate 
Recommended

CARTS $41.90 $9.94 $11.00 $43.75 $11.00
COA-PARD $30.43 $6.25 $6.25 $29.58 $10.00
AVG. (weighted) $31.25 $7.48 $8.32 $30.50 $10.50

 

Senior Center Operations 

CAPCOG/AAA received applications from 7 organizations for senior center operations funding requesting a total 
of $391,395. One applicant was new – Senior Connections – which runs two senior centers in Fayette County. 
The other 6 organizations are long-time subrecipients for this funding.  

 This funding helps these organizations provide activities at senior centers beyond just providing a meal, 
but because of the diversity of organizations that applied, staff and our review committee found it 
difficult to come up with a clear basis for awarding funding. 

 Since our priority for this funding is to pay for staff time that would be needed for offering activities at 
senior centers, we decided to recommend no more than $40,000 per organization to pay for part of the 
cost of a staff person at each organization to support these activities. 

 For CAI and HCSC, since they both received supplemental awards in FY 2025, we are recommending 
limiting their awards for FY 2026 to $20,000. 



Recommended Older American Act Subgrants | September 3, 2025 | Page 5 of 8 

The table below shows each organization’s recommended funding for FY 2026, as well as the amounts awarded 
or spent in FY 2024 and FY 2025. 

Table 5. Senior Center Funding Recommendation Details

Organization FY 2024 
Award

FY 2025 
Initial 

Award 

FY 2025 
Supplemental 

Award

FY 2026 
Eligible 

Costs

FY 2026 
Request

FY 2026 
Recommended 

Award 
CAI $45,700 $45,700 $31,940 $101,650 $52,000 $20,000 
CCA $65,000 $65,000 $0 $92,860 $65,000 $40,000
HCCAA $24,000 $24,000 $0 $28,235 $24,000 $24,000 
HCSC $31,034 $31,034 $79,945 $132,272 $31,034 $20,000 
OWBC $43,612 $35,395 $0 $90,307 $76,761 $40,000
SC n/a n/a n/a $154,736 $88,000 $40,000
WF $60,000 $60,000 $0 $359,703 $54,600 $40,000 
SUBTOTAL $269,346 $261,129 $111,885 $959,763 $391,395 $224,000

 

Congregate Meal Services 

CAPCOG/AAA received applications from four organizations to provide congregate meal services within the 
region for a total of $1,509,092 – CCA, HCCAA, MOWCT, and OWBC. These same four organizations have been 
subgrant recipients for these services for decades. 

 Staff is recommending awarding enough funding to cover all of each applicant’s funding requests up to 
an average reimbursement per meal of $12.00. 

 The total funding recommended - $1,424,496 – is only slightly less than the total amount requested and 
only 2% less than was awarded in FY 2025. 

 So far in FY 2025, providers have not been able to serve as many congregate meals as they had 
anticipated due to demand continuing to be lower than it was prior to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The table below summarizes the FY 2026 funding recommendations, along with comparisons to FY 2024 and FY 
2025 funding. 

Table 6. Congregate Meal Funding Recommendation Details 

Organization FY 2024 
Award 

FY 2025 
Award 

FY 2026 
Eligible 

Costs

FY 2026 
Request 

FY 2026 
Recommended 

Award 
CCA $114,800 $183,473 $241,904 $203,091 $167,844 
HCCAA $16,400 $23,719 $40,618 $26,130 $19,392 
MOWCT $688,800 $996,075 $1,341,396 $996,072 $996,072 
OWBC $147,600 $245,078 $335,585 $283,798 $241,188 
SUBTOTAL $967,600 $1,448,345 $1,959,503 $1,509,092 $1,424,496 

 

In addition to setting overall funding amounts, the contracts for congregate meals also needs to establish a fixed 
“per-meal” rate to use as the basis for reimbursement. AAA will then reimburse each provider based on the # of 
eligible meals they report. 



Recommended Older American Act Subgrants | September 3, 2025 | Page 6 of 8 

Each applicant submitted a “rate-setting” worksheet that includes calculations of their average cost per meal in 
FY 2024 and projected costs for FY 2026. Due to the high cost of congregate meals relative to home-delivered 
meals, staff decided to recommend that we continue to limit the reimbursement rate to no more than $12 per 
meal for FY 2026. 

The table below summarizes the congregate meal rates. 

Table 7. Congregate Meal Rates

Organization FY 2024 Avg. 
Cost per Meal 

FY 2024 
Reimb. Rate

FY 2025 
Reimb. Rate 

FY 2026 Avg. 
Cost per Meal 

FY 2026 Reimb. Rate 
Recommended

CCA $14.90 $8.20 $12.00 $17.08 $12.00
HCCAA $12.70 $8.20 $12.00 $19.02 $12.00
MOWCT $15.84 $8.20 $12.00 $14.12 $12.00
OWBC $12.28 $8.20 $10.69 $16.51 $12.00
AVG. (weighted) $15.10 $8.20 $11.76 $14.90 $12.00

Home-Delivered Meal Services 

CAPCOG/AAA received applications from four organizations to provide home-delivered meal services within the 
region for a total of $5,412,589 – CCA, HCCAA, MOWCT, and OWBC. These same four organizations have been 
subgrant recipients for these services for decades. The amount of funding requested is almost double the 
amount of funding available for FY 2026, and 35% more than the initial $4 million awarded for FY 2025. While, 
consistent with the AAA’s advice to applicants that they should find ways to reduce their home-delivered meal 
funding requests for FY 2026, CCA and HCCAA did in fact reduce their funding requests, MOWCT and OWBC 
requested substantially more funding than initially awarded in FY 2025, making it challenging to determine how 
much to recommend for funding for each organization. 

 Starting with the FY 2025 initial awards totaling $4 million as a starting point, AAA subtracted the 
supplemental awards granted to MOWCT to OWBC to get an adjusted baseline FY 2026 funding amount 
of $3 million, which was still above the $2.8 million available.  

 The supplemental amounts awarded to these two organizations were not expected by them for FY 2025 
and were not factored into their FY 2026 funding requests, but we advised them that their FY 2026 
funding would need to be adjusted to account for us “advancing” them this funding in FY 2025 as a 
result of HHSC’s new directive(s) regarding carry-forward. 

 In order to further reduce the recommended funding awards by the additional $200k needed to fit 
within the $2.8 million budget, AAA subtracted another approximately $5.22% of their initial FY 2025 
award from the updated baseline. This spreads the reduction in funding availability proportionately 
across all four organizations based on their initial FY 2025 awards.  



Recommended Older American Act Subgrants | September 3, 2025 | Page 7 of 8 

The table below shows the calculations for the FY 2026 funding recommendations.

Table 8. FY 2026 Home-Delivered Meal Funding Recommendation Calculations

Organization FY 2025 
Initial Award 

Subtract FY 2025 
Supplemental

Subtract 5.22% of 
FY 2025 Initial

FY 2026 
Recommendation 

CCA $1,307,057 ($0) ($68,225) $1,238,833 
HCCAA $168,416 ($0) ($8,791) $159,626 
MOWCT $1,162,800 ($748,178) ($60,695) $353,927
OWBC $1,361,725 ($211,445) ($71,078) $1,079,201 
TOTAL $4,000,000 ($959,623) ($208,789) $2,831,587 

The table below compares the FY 2026 funding recommendation to FY 2024 funding, FY 2025 funding, the FY 
2026 request, and total eligible FY 2026 costs. 

Table 9. Home-Delivered Meal Funding Recommendation Details

Organization FY 2024 
Award 

FY 2025 
Award 

(initial) 

FY 2026 
Eligible 

Costs

FY 2026 
Request 

FY 2026 
Recommended 

Award
CCA $1,302,099 $1,307,057 $1,515,207 $1,242,668 $1,238,833
HCCAA $118,220 $168,416 $161,590 $137,410 $159,626
MOWCT $868,876 $1,162,800 $4,185,450 $1,938,000 $353,927
OWBC $1,249,422 $1,361,725 $2,463,105 $2,094,511 $1,079,201
SUBTOTAL $3,538,616 $4,000,000 $8,325,351 $5,412,588 $2,831,587

 

Due to the substantial reductions in funding available for FY 2026 relative to FY 2025 and our expectation of 
even less being available in FY 2027, staff plan to work on developing a funding formula for FY 2027 that 
accounts for the target populations in each county and being served by each provider. 

As with congregate meals, the contracts for nutrition services will also need to establish a fixed “per-meal” rate 
to use as the basis for reimbursement for home-delivered meals. CAPCOG/AAA then reimburses each provider 
based on the # of eligible meals they report. 

Each applicant submitted a “rate-setting” worksheet that includes calculations of their average cost per meal in 
FY 2024 and projected costs for FY 2026. Since, in addition to meals sponsored by the AAA, MOWCT also serves 
Medicaid meals under a separate contract with HHSC, they are limited by rule to a reimbursement rate of $6.46. 

For the other three providers, we are recommending their full average cost per meal for their reimbursement 
rate rather than only a share of the rate. This recommendation arises primarily to maximize the total amount of 
home-delivered meal funding the region would qualify for over the next two years from both federal and state 
funding sources. In addition to the AAA home-delivered meal program, the Texas Department of Agriculture 
(TDA) has a home-delivered meal program using state funding that calculates grant funding for organizations 
based on the number of “local” meals served (meals not sponsored by the AAA). Based on this program design, 
the providers in the AAA region would qualify for more funding from TDA if AAA used a higher rate for fewer 
meals than a lower rate for more meals. By being strategic about this decision, we feel like we can feed more 
seniors in FY 2026 and FY 2027 than trying to artificially keep the reimbursement rate low. 



Recommended Older American Act Subgrants | September 3, 2025 | Page 8 of 8 

The table below summarizes the home-delivered meal rates.

Table 10. Congregate Meal Rates

Organization FY 2024 Avg. 
Cost per Meal 

FY 2024 
Reimb. Rate

FY 2025 
Reimb. Rate 

FY 2026 Avg. 
Cost per Meal 

FY 2026 Reimb. Rate 
Recommended

CCA $6.85 $7.79 $6.60 $7.92 $7.92
HCCAA $12.43 $8.34 $10.46 $12.43 $12.43
MOWCT $11.07 $6.46 $6.46 $11.79 $6.46
OWBC $8.63 $6.75 $7.36 $9.89 $9.89
AVG. (weighted) $9.78 $7.19 $6.91 $10.64 $8.50



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING  

MEETING DATE: September 17, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: 8. Consider Approval of Contract with City of Hutto for Remote Basic Peace Officer 
Course

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF ITEM: 
CAPCOG’s Regional Law Enforcement Academy (RLEA) is expected to receive a grant from the Office of the 
Governor (OOG) to run a remote Basic Peace Officer Course (BPOC) in fiscal year (FY) 2026 and staff is proposing 
to accomplish this through a contract with the City of Hutto. CAPCOG has partnered with Hutto for a number of 
remote, part-time BPOCs over the years, and based on this experience and the timing constraints for this BPOC, 
staff have determined that contracting with Hutto again would be the best way to carry out this grant. 
 
Unlike in prior years, this year, CAPCOG has dedicated funding that will enable both CAPCOG and Hutto to run the 
BPOC without financial risk. The contract provides for a base amount of $80,500 that will be provided to the City 
for coordinating the BPOC ($8,050 per month) and the 1st 700 hours of instruction, plus $75 per additional hour of 
instruction and $2,800 per enrolled cadet (CAPCOG would retain $1,000 per cadet from the $3,800 in tuition). The 
exact number of hours and schedule are still being worked out at the staff level and may differ somewhat from 
the estimated costs listed in this summary or in the draft contract attached to this item. Hutto County Council is 
expected to approve the contract at either their September 18 or October 2 meeting, with a target start date of 
December 15, 2025, and a target end date of September 3, 2026. 
 
THIS ITEM REPRESENTS A: 

 New issue, project, or purchase 
 Routine, regularly scheduled item 
 Follow-up to a previously discussed item 
 Special item requested by board member 
 Other 

 
PRIMARY CONTACT/STAFF MEMBER: David Bertling, Director of Regional Law Enforcement Academy  
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT: 
 Total estimated cost:  $105,025 - $194,625, depending on enrollment 

Source of Funds: Office of the Governor/Federal Justice Assistance Grants and Tuition
 Is item already included in fiscal year budget? Yes No
 Does item represent a new expenditure?  Yes   No 
 Does item represent a pass-through purchase?  Yes   No 
 If so, for what city/county/etc.?        

PROCUREMENT:  Interlocal Agreement 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
Approve Contract with City of Hutto for Remote Basic Peace Officer Course 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Draft Contract 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS NOT ATTACHED (to be sent prior to meeting or will be a handout at the meeting): 
None 



CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF 
GOVERNMENTS CONTRACT FOR A 
SATELLITE BASIC PEACE OFFICER 

COURSE 
Sec. 1. Parties and Purpose

1.1. The Capital Area Council of Governments ("CAPCOG") is a regional planning commission and 
political subdivision of the State of Texas organized and operating under the Texas Regional 
Planning Act of 1965, as amended, chapter 391 of the Local Government Code. 

1.2. CAPCOG is licensed by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE) as a regional 
academy, authorized to conduct law enforcement training programs that meet the 
requirements of TCOLE rules under Title 37 of the Texas Administrative Code (TAC), sections 
215.1, 215.3, 215.7, and 215.9 (37 TAC §§215.1, 215.3, 215.7, and 215.9). 

1.3. The City of Hutto (“LOCAL GOVERNMENT”), is a Texas home-rule municipality within State 
Planning Region 12 that is capable of hosting and running a Basic Peace Officer Course 
(BPOC) in accordance with CAPCOG policies and Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 
(TCOLE) rules. 

1.4. CAPCOG has received federal funding from the Officer of the Governor to sponsor a BPOC at 
a satellite location between October 1, 2025, and September 30, 2026. 

1.5. This Contract is entered into under chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code. 

Sec. 2. Goods and Services 
2.1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to provide CAPCOG the goods and services described in 

Attachment A, Scope of Work and in accordance with the rates and budget as itemized in 
Attachment A. 

Sec. 3. Term of Contract
3.1. This contract begins on the earlier of October 1, 2025, or the execution date, and ends on 

September 30, 2026, unless sooner terminated under Sec. 13, Sec. 14, or Sec. 15, or 
extended by mutual agreement of both parties. 

Sec. 4. Contract Price and Payment Terms 
4.1. CAPCOG agrees to compensate LOCAL GOVERNMENT for the goods and services provided 

under this Contract in accordance with the rates listed in Attachment A. 
4.2. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to invoice CAPCOG by the 10th of each month for services 

rendered in the prior month on a reimbursement form provided by CAPCOG. 
4.3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to certify each invoice as follows: 

a. CITY OF HUTTO certifies that this invoice is correct and complete, that the amount 
requested has not been received. 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 2 of 15 

4.4. CAPCOG agrees to pay LOCAL GOVERNMENT the amount owed on each invoice within 30 
calendar days after acceptance by CAPCOG staff. 

Sec. 5. Independent Contractor 
5.1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT is not an employee or agent of CAPCOG, but it performs this contract 

solely as an independent contractor. 

Sec. 6. Assignment and Subcontracting 
6.1. Except as described herein, LOCAL GOVERNMENT may not assign its rights or subcontract its 

duties under this contract without the prior written consent of CAPCOG. An attempted 
assignment or subcontract in violation of this Sec. 6.1 is void. 

Sec. 7. Liability Insurance
7.1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to maintain throughout the term of this contract sufficient 

insurance coverage to meet the following requirements: 

7.1.1. Commercial general liability insurance with the minimum coverages of $100,000 for 
each occurrence, $300,000 annual aggregate, and $100,000 excess liability coverage; 

7.1.2. Texas workers' compensation insurance with coverage satisfying the statutory 
requirements plus Employers’ Liability insurance with minimum coverages per 
employee of $100,000 for bodily injury and $300,000 for disease for each accident; and 

7.1.3. Comprehensive automobile liability insurance with limits of at least $300,000 combined 
single limit for bodily injury and property damage for each occurrence. 

7.1.4. If LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s insurance policies are not written for amounts specified 
above, LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall carry umbrella or excess liability insurance for any 
differences in amounts specified. If excess liability insurance is provided, it shall follow 
the form of the primary coverage. 

7.2. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to name CAPCOG as an additional insured on each of the 
insurance policies, except the worker's compensation policy, maintained under Sec. 7.1.2.. 
Each of LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s insurance policies maintained under Sec. 7.1 must contain 
provisions (1) that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT will notify CAPCOG least 30 calendar days in 
advance of (i) cancellation or nonrenewal of the policy, (ii)or any reduction in the policy 
amounts., and (iii) deletion of CAPCOG as an additional insured; and waivers of subrogation 
in CAPCOG’s favor. 

7.3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to furnish CAPCOG a copy of the declarations page or a 
certificate of insurance for each insurance policy maintained under Sec. 7.1 within 30 
calendar days after the effective date of this contract. 

Sec. 8. Indemnification 
8.1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees at its own expense to defend CAPCOG, its governing body 

members, officers, employees, and agents against any claim, suit, or administrative 
proceeding, and to indemnify them against any liability (including all expenses and 
reasonable counsel fees incurred), to the extent arising out of any intentional, grossly 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 3 of 15 

negligent, or negligent act or omission of LOCAL GOVERNMENT 's governing body member, 
officer, employee, or agent under this contract. 

8.2. If LOCAL GOVERNMENT is served with process in a suit or proceeding described in Sec. 8.1, 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees promptly to furnish CAPCOG with a copy of the process. 

8.3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees that its obligations under Secs. 8.1 and 8.2 apply to causes of 
action accruing during the term of this contract, and that for this purpose the obligations 
will survive the ending or early termination of this contract. 

Sec. 9. Records and Inspections
9.1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to maintain records adequate to document its performance, 

costs, and receipts under this contract. LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to maintain these 
records at LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s office address described in Sec. 17. 

9.2. Subject to the additional requirement of Sec. 9.3, LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to preserve 
the records for four years after receiving its final payment under this contract. 

9.3. If an audit of or information in the records is disputed or the subject of litigation, LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT agrees to preserve the records until the dispute or litigation is finally 
concluded, regardless of the ending or early termination of this contract. 

9.4. CAPCOG is entitled to inspect and copy, during normal business hours at LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT’s offices where they are maintained, the records maintained under this 
contract for as long as they are preserved. 

9.5. CAPCOG is also entitled to visit LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s offices and talk to its personnel 
during normal business hours to assist in evaluating its performance under this contract. 

Sec. 10. Proprietary or Confidential Information 
10.1. All information in CAPCOG's possession is public information and is subject to disclosure to 

third parties upon request, unless exempted from disclosure by the Texas Public Information 
Act. 

10.2. If LOCAL GOVERNMENT believes that information it submits to CAPCOG is proprietary or 
confidential and is not disclosable to a third party, LOCAL GOVERNMENT must clearly mark 
the information as proprietary or confidential and inform CAPCOG in writing that LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT will contest disclosure of the information if disclosure is requested under the 
Texas Public Information Act. 

10.3. If the allegedly proprietary or confidential information is clearly marked as such and 
CAPCOG was informed of LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s desire to keep the information 
confidential, CAPCOG agrees to use the information only in performing this contract and to 
take reasonable precautions to protect the information from unauthorized disclosure to 
third parties. CAPCOG agrees to refuse to disclose the information, if requested to do so 
under the Texas Public Information Act, and instead to request an Attorney General's 
decision on whether the information may be disclosed. CAPCOG agrees to inform LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT of any request for disclosure of the information under the Texas Public 
Information Act. 

10.4. CAPCOG's sole obligation to protect allegedly proprietary or confidential information 
submitted by LOCAL GOVERNMENT is described in this Sec. 10. 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 4 of 15 

Sec. 11. Intellectual Property 
11.1. For purposes of this Sec. 11, "intellectual property" means a discovery or invention for 

which patent, trademark, or trade secret rights may be acquired; designs, plans, maps, 
computer programs, reports, manuals, or other copyrightable materials; and any other 
materials in which intellectual property rights have been or may be acquired. 

11.2. Unless specifically identified in accordance with Section 11.3, CAPCOG will hold an exclusive 
right to all intellectual property produced under this contract. 

11.3. If LOCAL GOVERNMENT creates intellectual property in the performance of this contract or 
purchases intellectual property with contract funds, LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall promptly 
notify CAPCOG of the creation or purchase and supply CAPCOG with sufficient technical 
detail to identify the property and describe its likely applications. 

11.4. CAPCOG reserves an irrevocable, nonexclusive, and royalty-free right to use, reproduce, 
copy, sell, or license, and to license others to use, reproduce, copy, sell, or license, for a 
governmental purpose, any intellectual property created in the performance of this contract 
and to use, reproduce, or copy data purchased with contract funds. 

Sec. 12. Applicable Law 
12.1. In carrying out this contract, LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to comply with all applicable laws. 

This Contract is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Texas. 

12.2. To the extent that conditions are attached to any source of funding that CAPCOG uses to 
pay for this contract flows down to sub-contracts, those provisions also apply to this 
contract. 

Sec. 13. Suspension or Termination of Contract for 
Unavailability of Funds 

13.1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT acknowledges that CAPCOG is a governmental entity without taxing 
power and agrees that CAPCOG may suspend its payment obligations under or terminate 
this contract in whole or part if CAPCOG learns that funds to pay for all or part of the goods 
or services will not be available at the time of delivery or performance. If CAPCOG suspends 
or terminates only part of this contract for unavailability of funds, LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
agrees to perform the unsuspended or unterminated part if CAPCOG so requests. 

13.2. CAPCOG suspends or terminates this contract for unavailability of funds by giving LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT notice of the suspension or termination, as soon as it learns of the funding 
unavailability, specifying the suspension or termination date, which may not be fewer than 
10 business days from the notice date, and describing the part or parts suspended or 
terminated. The contract is suspended or terminates on the specified termination date. 

13.3. If this contract is suspended or terminated for unavailability of funds under this Sec. 13, 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT is entitled to compensation for the services it performed before it 
received notice of suspension or termination. However, CAPCOG is not liable to LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT for costs it paid or incurred under this contract after or in anticipation of its 
receipt of notice of suspension or termination. 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 5 of 15 

Sec. 14. Termination for Breach of Contract 
14.1. If LOCAL GOVERNMENT or CAPCOG breaches a material provision of this contract, the other 

may notify the breaching party describing the breach and demanding corrective action. The 
breaching party has five business days from its receipt of the notice to correct the breach, or 
to begin and continue with reasonable diligence and in good faith to correct the breach. If 
the breach cannot be corrected within a reasonable time, despite the breaching party's 
reasonable diligence and good faith effort to do so, the parties may agree to terminate the 
contract or either party may invoke the dispute resolution process of Sec. 14. 

14.2. Termination for breach under this section does not waive either party's claim for damages 
resulting from the breach. 

Sec. 15. Suspension or Termination of Contract for 
Convenience 

15.1. CAPCOG may, upon providing at least 10 days’ written notice to LOCAL GOVERNMENT, 
partially or fully suspend or terminate this contract for convenience. Termination shall not 
prejudice any other right or remedy of CAPCOG or LOCAL GOVERNMENT. LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT may request reimbursement for conforming work and timely, reasonable 
costs directly attributable to termination. LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall not be paid for work 
not performed, loss of anticipated profits or revenue, consequential damages or other 
economic loss arising out of or resulting from termination. If CAPCOG suspends or 
terminates only part of this contract, LOCAL GOVERNMENT agrees to perform the 
unsuspended or unterminated part if CAPCOG so requests. 

Sec. 16. Dispute Resolution 
16.1. The parties desire to resolve disputes arising under this contract without litigation. 

Accordingly, if a dispute arises, the parties agree to attempt in good faith to resolve the 
dispute between themselves. To this end, the parties agree not to sue one another, except 
to enforce compliance with this Sec. 16, toll the statute of limitations, or seek an injunction, 
until they have exhausted the procedures set out in this Sec. 16. 

16.2. At the written request of either party, each party shall appoint one nonlawyer 
representative to negotiate informally and in good faith to resolve any dispute arising under 
this contract. The representatives appointed shall determine the location, format, 
frequency, and duration of the negotiations. 

16.3. If the representatives cannot resolve the dispute within 30 calendar days after the first 
negotiation meeting, the parties agree to refer the dispute to the Dispute Resolution Center 
of Austin for mediation in accordance with the Center's mediation procedures by a single 
mediator assigned by the Center. Each party shall pay half the cost of the Center's mediation 
services. 

16.4. The parties agree to continue performing their duties under this contract, which are 
unaffected by the dispute, during the negotiation and mediation process. 

Sec. 17. Notice to Parties 
17.1. Notice to be effective under this contract must be in writing and received by the party 

against whom it is to operate. Notice is received by a party: (1) when it is acknowledged as 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 6 of 15 

received via e-mail by the intended recipient; (2) when it is delivered to the party 
personally; (3) on the date shown on the return receipt if mailed by registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the party's address specified in Sec. 17.2 and signed on 
behalf of the party; (4) three business days after its deposit in the United States mail, with 
first-class postage affixed, addressed to the party's address specified in Sec. 17.2; or (5) one 
business day after it is submitted by e-mail to the party’s e-mail address specified in Sec. 
17.2. 

17.2. CAPCOG's address is 6800 Burleson Road, Building 310, Suite 165, Austin, TX 78744, 
Attention: Chris Miller, Executive Director, cmiller@capcog.org. LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s 
address is [city, state, ZIP, e-mail address].

17.3. A party may change its address or e-mail address by providing notice of the change in 
accordance with Sec. 17.1. 

Sec. 18. Conflict of Interest
18.1. Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code requires contractors and consultants 

seeking to do business with CAPCOG to file a conflict of interest questionnaire (CIQ) if they 
have an employment or other business relationship with a CAPCOG officer or an officer’s 
close family member. The required questionnaire and instructions are located at the Texas 
Ethics Commission website www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/CIQ.pdf. CAPCOG officers include 
the Executive Committee and Executive Director, who are listed on the CAPCOG website. 
The CIQ must be completed and filed with a bid, request for proposal or quote, if an 
employment or business relationship defined in the law exists.  

Sec. 19. Gift to Public Servant 
19.1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT warrants that it has not given, offered to give, nor does it intend to 

give, at any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, 
gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to a public servant in connection with the 
RFP or the Agreement.  

Sec. 20. Equal Opportunity 
20.1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT will be required to comply with all Equal Employment Opportunity 

laws and regulations.  

Sec. 21. Title VI Requirements 
21.1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT is required to comply with all requirements imposed by Title VI of the 

Civil Rights Acts of 1964 (49 U.S.C. Section 2000d), the regulations of DOT issued hereunder 
(49 C.F.R. part 21), and the assurances by CAPCOG thereto.  

Sec. 22. Miscellaneous 
27.1. Each individual signing this contract on behalf of a party warrants that he or she is legally 

authorized to do so and that the party is legally authorized to perform the obligations 
undertaken. 

27.2. This contract shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. Venue for all disputes hereunder shall be solely in Travis County. 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 7 of 15 

27.3. CAPCOG is a governmental agency and is exempt from payment of sales tax. Unless 
CAPCOG’s request for quote or specifications specifically indicate otherwise, the price bid 
must be net exclusive of the previously mentioned taxes. 

27.4. If the total amount of this Agreement is in excess of $100,000, and if the LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT is required to make a certification pursuant to Texas Government Code, 
Section 2274.002 (as added by Acts 2021, 87th Leg., R.S., S.B. 13, § 2), the LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT certifies that it does not boycott energy companies and will not boycott 
energy companies during the term of this Agreement. If the LOCAL GOVERNMENT does not 
make that certification, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT must state why the certification is not 
required. 

27.5. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT represents that neither the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, nor any 
affiliate of the LOCAL GOVERNMENT, (i) is an entity listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts under Texas Government Code, Sections 2252.153 or 2270.0201; (ii) constitutes a 
"scrutinized company" as defined by Texas Government Code, Section 2270.0001 (9); or (iii) 
has contracts with, provides supplies or services to, or is otherwise engaged in business with 
Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Texas Government Code, 
Section 2252.152. 

27.6. LOCAL GOVERNMENT understands that CAPCOG will adhere to the President's Executive 
Order (EO) 13224, Executive Order on Terrorist Financing - Blocking Property and 
Prohibiting Transactions With Persons Who Commit, Threaten to Commit, or Support 
Terrorism, and LOCAL GOVERNMENT certifies that it and its principals are eligible to 
participate in this Agreement and have not been subjected to suspension, debarment, 
or similar ineligibility determined by any federal, state, or local governmental entity; 
that it is in compliance with Texas statutes and rules; and that it is not listed on the 
federal government's terrorism watch list.

27.7. If the total amount of this Agreement is in excess of $100,000, and if the LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT is required to make a certification pursuant to Texas Government Code, 
Section 2274.002 (as added by Acts 2021, 87th Leg., R.S., S.B. 19, § I), the LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT certifies that it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that 
discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and  will not discriminate 
during the term of this Agreement against  a firearm entity or firearm trade association. If 
the LOCAL GOVERNMENT does not make that certification, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT must 
state why the certification is not required. 

27.8. If the total amount of this Agreement is in excess of $100,000, and if the LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT is required to make a certification pursuant to Texas Government Code, 
Section 2271.002, the LOCAL GOVERNMENT certifies that the LOCAL GOVERNMENT: (1) 
does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

27.9. If the total amount of this Agreement is in excess of $100,000, LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
certifies that it will not use and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person 
or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other 
award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. LOCAL GOVERNMENT also agrees to disclose any 
lobbying with non- Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal 
award or contract. 

27.10. If the total amount of this Agreement is in excess of $150,000, the LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT certifies it will comply with all applicable standards, orders or 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 8 of 15 

regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 740l-7671q) and the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387).

27.11. The LOCAL GOVERNMENT represents and warrants that it will comply with Section 6002 
of the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC§ 6962), as amended by the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, and Title 40, Pa11 247 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations.

27.12. To the extent applicable, LOCAL GOVERNMENT represents and warrants that it will buy 
Texas products, services, and materials for use in providing the services authorized herein 
when such products, services, and materials are available at a comparable price and in a 
comparable period of time when compared to non-Texas products, services, and materials. 

27.13. This contract states the entire agreement of the parties, and may be amended only by a 
written amendment executed by both parties, except that any alterations, additions, or 
deletions to the terms of this contract which are required by changes in Federal and State 
law or regulations are automatically incorporated into this contract without written 
amendment hereto and shall become effective on the date designated by such law or 
regulation. 

27.14. This contract is executed through signatures affixed electronically or scanned by both 
parties and transmitted electronically. 

Sec. 23. Attachments 
The following Attachments are part of this Contract: 

A. Scope of Work 
B. Course Schedule 
C. Project Representatives and Records Location 
D. Certifications 

1. Signed Certification of Compliance with Small, Disadvantaged, Minority, Women-
Owned, and Historically Underutilized Business Policy 

2. Signed Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary 
Exclusion for Lower-Tier Covered Transactions 

3. Signed Certification Regarding Lobbying 
4. Signed Certification Regarding State Prohibition of Contracts with Companies Boycotting 

Israel. 
5. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire [if applicable; required if LOCAL GOVERNMENT has a 

connection to a board member or CAPCOG employee to declare] 
6. Certificate of Interested Parties Form – Form 1295, Completed Online at 

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/.  



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 9 of 15 

Signatures 
City of Hutto  Capital Area Council of Governments

 
By  By

[Typed Name]
[Title]

Chris Miller
Executive Director

Date  Date

Date of Governing Body Approval   
 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 10 of 15 

Attachment A: Scope of Work 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall administer a Basic Peace Officer Course (BPOC), a licensing course for Texas 
Peace Officers, on behalf of the Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG) pursuant to the rules of 
the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE) and CAPCOG’s rules and policies for BPOCs. LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT’s performance of this scope of work will be subject to the supervision of CAPCOG’s 
Regional Law Enforcement Academy (RLEA) Training Coordinator. 

Local Government’s Responsibilities 
In offering a BPOC under CAPCOG’s Regional Law Enforcement Academy license, LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
is responsible for carrying out the course in accordance with all TCOLE rules that apply to CAPCOG and 
all CAPCOG rules for BPOCs. LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall be responsible for the following: 

1. Administering a BPOC course (TCOLE course number 1000736) for up to 32 cadets between 
November 1, 2025, and September 30, 2026, in accordance with statutory and TCOLE 
requirements. The BPOC shall have a minimum of 736 hours of instruction as described in 
TCOLE’s approved BPOC curriculum: https://www.tcole.texas.gov/document/bpoc-1000736-
instructor-resource-guide-2024.zip. 

2. Administering the following additional “add-on” courses prior to BPOC graduation in accordance 
with TCOLE rules: 

a. Baton (All); TCOLE Course # 2053; 

b. Radar; TCOLE Course # 2054; 

c. Lidar Radar Training; TCOLE Course # 2065; 

d. Less Lethal Chemical Weapons Training (OC, Mace, etc.); TCOLE Course # 3343 

e. Body-Worn Camera; Course TCOLE: Course # 8158 

f. FEMA 100FDA Intro ICS (FEMA IS-100 FDA); TCOLE Course # 66098; 

g. FEMA ICS Single Res/Initial Incident (FEMA IS-200b); TCOLE Course # 66201; 

h. FEMA Intro National Incident MGMT (IS-700 b); TCOLE Course #66699; and 

i. FEMA Natl Resp Framework, an Intro FEMA IS-800 d; TCOLE Course 66801. 

3. Identification of a primary and backup Course Coordinator who will be directly responsible for 
coordinating the course subject to the supervision of CAPCOG’s Training Coordinator. Both 
individuals must hold an instructor certificate from TCOLE. 

4. Except as explicitly identified on Attachment B: Course Schedule or otherwise in writing from 
CAPCOG’s Training Coordinator following contract execution, LOCAL GOVERNMENT is 
responsible for carrying out all instruction for the course, including administering exams and 
assessments. 

5. All instructors are required to comply with the requirements of 37 TAC §215.10. Instructors are 
responsible for: 

a. Ensuring compliance with commission rules and guidance. 

b. Preparing, maintaining, and submitting reports of training to CAPCOG within five 
business days of completion of a course. 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 11 of 15 

c. The administration of each segment of the course taught. 

d. Providing a complete lesson plan, clear learning objectives, an instructor biography, a 
class roster, a sign-in sheet, and a course evaluation for each segment of the class 
taught. 

e. Enforcing attendance and other standards set by TCOLE or CAPCOG.

f. Maintaining the discipline and demeanor of each student during class. 

g. Distributing or presenting learning objectives to all students at the beginning of each 
segment of the course. 

h. Ensuring that all learning objectives are taught. 

i. Ensuring examinations are proctored or supervised to have fair, honest results. 

6. Identification of all proposed instructors, their PID numbers, and the proposed segments of the 
course they would teach. 

7. Provide CAPCOG with PID numbers, certifications, contact information, and resumes for all 
proposed instructors. 

8. Scheduling all instructors and facility usage for the course once approved by CAPCOG. 

9. The Course Coordinator shall supervise all instructors other than CAPCOG staff. 

10. Providing facilities sufficient for instruction of up to 48 cadets, including facilities necessary for 
the firearms and driving portions of the BPOC. 

11. Provide copies of all course material to CAPCOG’s Training Coordinator within 5 business day of 
the completion of each segment of the class. 

12. Administer the course in accordance with CAPCOG’s BPOC rules. 

13. Report any complaints or issues to CAPCOG’s Training Coordinator promptly. 

CAPCOG’s Responsibilities 
CAPCOG, as an entity approved by TCOLE to provide peace officer licensing courses, and as the entity 
ultimately responsible for this course, shall be responsible for the following: 

1. Approval of LOCAL GOVERNMENT’s proposed Course Coordinator and backup Course 
Coordinator. 

2. Recruiting and enrolling cadets and accepting payment in accordance with CAPCOG’s tuition 
policy. 

3. Approving all instructors, lesson plans, media, and material used for the course. 

4. Approving any modifications to Attachment B: Course Schedule. 

5. Providing learning management software (LMS) for LOCAL GOVERNMENT to use in 
administering tests and evaluation. 

6. Providing training supplies identified in Attachment C: Course Software and Supplies Provided 
by CAPCOG. 

7. Perform periodic on-site observation and monitoring of instruction to ensure compliance with 
contractual requirements. 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 12 of 15 

8. Making determinations for any [Level X] or higher disciplinary action for any participant in the 
course in compliance with CAPCOG’s BPOC Rules. 

9. Reviewing and approving course documentation, including sign-in rosters, lesson plans, and 
course evaluations. 

10. Reporting to TCOLE and, if applicable, the Veteran’s Administration (VA). 

11. Maintaining records of the course and participants as required under CAPCOG’s training 
contract with TCOLE. 

12. Providing any instruction explicitly described in Attachment B: Course Schedule. 

Compensation 
CAPCOG shall compensate LOCAL GOVERNMENT for services provided pursuant to this contract 
according to the following rates and conditions: 

 Base Course Coordination Costs: $80,500 total, $8,050 per month December 1, 2025 – 
September 30, 2026, base amount regardless of enrollment: 

o Facility rental: $2,450.00 per month, $24,500 total; 

o Course coordination services: $5,600.00 per month for course coordinator services, 
$56,000 total, to include at least 700 hours of BPOC instruction; 

 Other Instructors: $75 per hour of instruction, estimated to be between $9,525 and $24,525 
total, subject to approval of CAPCOG’s project representative; 

 Per-cadet compensation: 

o In addition to the amounts listed above, LOCAL GOVERNMENT shall also receive $2,800 
per enrolled cadet up to a maximum of $89,600 (32 cadets maximum) to cover the 
marginal costs of time required for each additional enrolled student. 

o CAPCOG will retain the additional $1,000 from tuition for each cadet to cover 
administrative costs associated with each additional cadet enrolled in this class. 

 LOCAL GOVERNMENT must pay full tuition for any cadet it wishes to enroll in this class. 

  



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 13 of 15 

Attachment B: Course Schedule 
The following is the preliminary course schedule for BPOC 104. Changes are subject to approval of 
CAPCOG’s Training Coordinator. 

Date Times # Hours Subject and 
Module Instructor 

CAPCOG or 
LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT
Mon. 12/15/2025 6 pm – 10 pm 4 Academy Intro David Bertling CAPCOG

[Fill in]
    
    

Holidays 
The following dates are CAPCOG agency holidays; no classes may be scheduled on these dates: 

1. Veteran’s Day: Tuesday, November 11, 2025; 

2. Thanksgiving: Thursday, November 27, 2025; 

3. Day after Thanksgiving: Friday, November 28, 2025; 

4. Christmas Eve: Wednesday, December 24, 2025; 

5. Christmas: Thursday, December 25, 2025; 

6. New Year’s Day: Thursday, January 1, 2026; 

7. Martin Luther King Day: Monday, January 19, 2026; 

8. Presidents Day: Monday, February 16, 2026; 

9. Memorial Day: Monday, May 25, 2026; 

10. Emancipation Day: Friday, June 19, 2026; 

11. Independence Day (Observed): Friday, July 3, 2026; and 

12. Labor Day: Monday, September 7, 2026.  



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 14 of 15 

Attachment C: Project Representatives and Records Location 
CAPCOG Project Representative 
The individual named below is the CAPCOG Project Representative, who is authorized to give and 
receive communications and directions on behalf of CAPCOG. All communications including all payment 
requests must be addressed to the CAPCOG Project Representative or his or her designee. The CAPCOG 
Project Representative may indicate a designee through an e-mail to: [E-mail of LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
Project Representative]. 

 
[Type Name of Project Representative]  Telephone No.: (xxx) xxx-xxxx 
(Name) 
[Type Title]     E-mail: [Type e-mail address of Project Representative] 
(Title) 

      
Capital Area Council of Governments 
6800 Burleson Road 
Building 310, Suite 165 
Austin, Texas 78744 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT Project Representative 
The individual named below is the LOCAL GOVERNMENT Project Representative, who is authorized to 
give and receive communications and directions on behalf of LOCAL GOVERNMENT. All communications 
must be addressed to the LOCAL GOVERNMENT Project Representative or his or her designee. The 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT Project Representative may indicate a designee through an e-mail to [E-mail of 
CAPCOG Project Representative] 

[Type Name of Project Representative]  Telephone No.: (xxx) xxx-xxxx 
(Name) 
[Type Title]     E-mail: [Type e-mail address of Project Representative] 
(Title) 

[Organization Name]
[Address] 
[City, State and ZIP] 

Submittal of Payment Requests 
Submit payment requests to CAPCOG’s Project Representative and to apinvoices@capcog.org.  

Designated Location for Records Access and Review 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT designates the physical location below for record access and review pursuant to 
any applicable provision of this Contract: 

[Organization Name] 
[Address] 
[City, State and ZIP] 



CAPCOG-City of Hutto Satellite BPOC Contract, September 17, 2025

Page 15 of 15 

Attachment D: Certifications 
[Add certifications] 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING DATE: September 17, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: 9. Initial Review of Draft Changes to CAPCOG By-Laws

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF ITEM: 
Presentation of the changes to the CAPCOG By-Laws.  Board members will have an opportunity to provide 
feedback to the changes of the CAPCOG By-Laws at the October 15, 2025 Executive Committee Board Meeting.  

THIS ITEM REPRESENTS A: 
New issue, project, or purchase 
Routine, regularly scheduled item 
Follow-up to a previously discussed item 
Special item requested by board member 
Other

PRIMARY CONTACT/STAFF MEMBER: Council Member Doug Weiss, Chair of By-Laws Committee 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: 
Total estimated cost:  0 
Source of Funds:  0 
Is item already included in fiscal year budget?  Yes  No 
Does item represent a new expenditure?  Yes  No 
Does item represent a pass-through purchase?  Yes  No 
If so, for what city/county/etc.?     

PROCUREMENT: N/A 

ACTION REQUESTED: Provide By-Law committee feedback on draft changes to CAPCOG By-Laws. 

BACK-UP DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Draft By-Laws 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 1 of 13 

Bylaws of the CAPITAL AREA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

ARTICLE I - CREATION AND PURPOSE 

Section 1.1 - Preamble 

(a) We, the representatives of local governments in State Planning Region 12, join together in a voluntary 
organization, to be known as the Capital Area Council of Governments, for the purpose of meeting at regular 
intervals to discuss and study community challenges of mutual interest and concern, and to develop plans, 
policies, and recommendations for action for approval and implementation by member local governments 
and other levels of government within the Region. 

(b) We recognize that our individual and common destinies rest with the interdependent actions of the local 
governments located within the Region. 

(c) The Capital Area Council of Governments is a voluntary organization of local governments through which its 
members seek, by mutual agreement and closer cooperation, solutions to mutual problems for their mutual 
benefit. 

(d) The Council's goal is to combine the total resources of its members for regional planning beyond the 
capabilities of the individual members. 

Section 1.2 – Creation 

The Capital Area Council of Governments was created June 26, 1970, pursuant to the Regional Planning Act of 
1965, as amended, Chapter 391 of the Texas Local Government Code. The Council's geographic boundaries are 
coextensive with State Planning Region 12, which comprises the counties of Bastrop, Blanco, Burnet, Caldwell, 
Fayette, Hays, Lee, Llano, Travis, and Williamson. The name of the council was changed from Capital Area 
Planning Council to Capital Area Council of Governments effective August 11, 2004. 

Section 1.3 – Purpose 

(a) The general purpose of the Council is to encourage and facilitate local governments in the Region to 
cooperate with one another, with other levels of government, and with the private sector to plan for the 
future development of the Region and thereby improve the health, safety, and general welfare of their 
citizens. 

(b) The specific purposes of the Council are: 

(1) to make studies and plans to guide the unified, far-reaching development of the Region and assist 
participating local governments in preparing and implementing plans that are consistent with the 
Council's general purpose; 

(2) to coordinate development in the Region and thereby eliminate duplication and promote economy and 
efficiency; 

(3) to serve as a forum to identify, focus on, discuss, and study regional challenges and opportunities; 

(4) to serve as a vehicle for the collection and exchange of information about the Region and to provide for 
effective communication and coordination among member governments, other levels of government, 
and the private sector; 

(5) to encourage, develop, and review policies, plans, and priorities for Regional growth and development; 

(6) to furnish general and technical aid to member governments; 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 2 of 13 

(7) to facilitate agreement and cooperative action among member governments to carry out specific 
projects; 

(8) to maintain liaison with member governments, other levels of government, and the private sector, and 
to serve as a Regional spokesman for local governmental interests; 

(9) to review, coordinate, and expedite federal, state, and local governmental programs that have Regional 
implications; and 

(10) to develop and carry out plans and programs as directed by the Council. 

ARTICLE II – MEMBERSHIP IN THE COUNCIL 

Section 2.1 – Qualification for Membership 

To be eligible for membership in the Capital Area Council of Governments, a local government or other 
organization or individual described in Section 2.2, must be located, in whole or part, in State Planning Region 12. 

Section 2.2 – Categories of Membership 

The categories of membership and organizations eligible for membership in the Council are: 

(1) Full Members: counties and municipalities. 

(2) Associate Members:  independent and common school districts and water, drainage, conservation, and 
sewer, hospital, and other special-purpose governmental districts; other local, state, and federal 
governmental units or agencies, publicly and privately owned public utilities; and nonprofit organizations 
specifically concerned with health, welfare, economic, or civic development, if these organizations' 
membership is approved by the Executive Committee. 

(3) Sustaining Members: an individual or organization with a positive interest in the welfare of State 
Planning Region 12. 

Section 2.3 – Joinder and Withdrawal 

(a) An organization or individual eligible for membership in the Council may apply for membership by submitting 
to the Executive Committee a written resolution of its governing body, or, in the case of an individual, a 
written request for membership, together with the amount of dues calculated under Section 8.1. If the 
applicant is eligible for membership and the correct amount of dues accompanied the resolution or request, 
the Executive Committee shall may admit, by resolution approved by a two-thirds vote of all members of the 
Executive Committee, the applicant as a member in the appropriate category and memorialize the admission 
by written resolution. The applicant becomes a member of the Council on the date the resolution is adopted. 

(b) A member of the Council may withdraw its membership at any time by submitting to the Executive 
Committee a written resolution or, in the case of an individual, a written request of withdrawal. The 
Executive Committee shall memorialize the withdrawal by written resolution, and the withdrawal becomes 
effective when the resolution is adopted. 

(b)(c) Upon the receipt of a petition from two members, the Executive Committee will hold a public hearing for 
the removal of an Associate Member. A two-thirds vote of all members of the Executive Committee is 
required to remove the Associate Member.  The Associate Member will have the opportunity to speak during 
the public hearing. 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 3 of 13 

ARTICLE III – REPRESENTATION IN THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 

Section 3.1 – General Assembly 

The representatives of members of the Capital Area Council of Governments are collectively the General 
Assembly of the Council. 

Section 3.2 – Elected Officials 

At least two-thirds of the voting representatives in the General Assembly must be elected officials of the 
governing body of full members of the Council. 

Section 3.3 – Full Member Representatives 

(a) Each full member of the Council is entitled to representation in accordance with the following schedule 
based on the member's population determined under Section 9.4: 

Counties Municipalities Number of Representatives 
Under 20,000 Under 10,000 1 
20,000 – 100,000 10,000 – 50,000 2 
100,000+ 50,000 – 100,000 3 
 100,000+ 4 

 
(b) The governing body of the full member shall select its representatives to the General Assembly with a 

majority vote of the member’s governing body. 

(c) Each representative of a full member has one vote in the General Assembly and on all committees on which 
the representative serves. 

(d) Full Members are eligible to appoint their full number of representatives immediately upon the population, 
as determined by policy, crossing the threshold listed in 3.3(a). If a Full Member’s population drops such that 
they are allocated fewer Representatives, they shall have one year to reduce their representation. 

(c)(e) A Full Member may select a citizen representative if an elected official is not available to represent the 
member to the extent that the General Assembly representation complies with the requirements of Section 
3.2. 

Section 3.4 – Associate Member Representatives 

(a) Each associate member of the Council is entitled to one representative. 

(b) The governing body of the associate member shall select its representative to the General Assembly with a 
majority vote of the member’s governing body. 

(c) An associate member representative has one vote in the General Assembly and on all committees on which 
the representative serves. 

Section 3.5 – Citizen Representatives 

(a) A full member may select a citizen representative if an elected official is not available to represent the 
member. 

(b) Each citizen representative has one vote in the General Assembly and on all committees on which the 
representative serves 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 4 of 13 

Section 3.6 – Sustaining Member Representatives 

(a) Each sustaining member is entitled to and shall select one representative. 

(b) A sustaining member representative is not entitled to vote in the General Assembly. A sustaining member 
representative has one vote on other committees on which the representative serves. 

Section 3.7 5 – Terms of Representatives 

(a) A representative serves from the time they are appointed by the member organization until the time they 
are replaced by the member organization. An elected official who is a representative serves for the duration 
of his or her elected office.  All non-elected representatives serve for two-year terms. 

(b) A representative's term begins on January 1 of the year following the year in which the representative is 
selected. A representative's term expires on December 31 of the year in which the representative's term 
ends as prescribed in subsection (a). 

(c) A representative whose term expires continues to serve as a representative until his or her successor is 
selected and qualifies. 

(d) A representative who has been elected to serve on the Executive Committee may continue to serve as a 
representative, and thereby remain on the Executive Committee, if he or she was an elected official at the 
time of election to the Executive Committee. 

Section 3.8 6 – Resignation and Removal 

(a) A representative may resign at any time by giving written notice to the chairperson or secretaryExecutive 
Director of the Council. A representative's resignation is effective when the notice is given, unless the 
notice specifies a later effective date. The executive director will immediately notify the officers of the 
Council and the member organization. 

(b) The authority that selected a representative may remove the representative, with or without cause, at 
any time by giving written notice of removal to the chairperson or secretary of the Council. Removal is 
effective when the notice is received. 

Section 3.9 7 – Vacancy 

(a) A vacancy on the General Assembly occurs: 

(1) when a representative dies; 

(2) when a representative resigns; or 

(3) when a representative is removed.; or 

(4) when a representative becomes disqualified to serve. 

(b) The authority that selected the representative whose position is vacant shall fill the vacancy for the 
remainder of the unexpired term. 

ARTICLE IV – THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 

Section 4.1 – General Responsibilities 

The General Assembly has the following general responsibilities: 

(a) to establish the overall policies and specific objectives of the Council; 

(b) to create, appoint members to, fill vacancies in, and specify the duties of permanent committees of the 
General Assembly, not otherwise described in these bylaws, to assist in carrying out its responsibilities; 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 5 of 13 

(c) to review, on its own motion or at the request of the Executive Committee or any permanent committee 
of the General Assembly, any action of the Executive Committee or permanent committee. 

Section 4.1 2 – Meetings 

(a) The representatives of members shall meet regularly as a General Assembly during the summer or fall and in 
December ofat least once each year and hold. The December meeting is the Annual Meeting of the General 
Assembly. 

(b) The General Assembly shall meet upon call of the chairperson of the Council or upon the written request of 
at least 20%one-third of the representatives of the full members. 

Section 4.2 3 – Notice 

Notice of both regular and special meetings of the General Assembly must comply with the Open Meetings Act. 

Section 4.3 4 – Quorum and Action 

(a) A quorum of the General Assembly consists of one-third of the total number of representatives of full 
members, excluding vacancies. However, if there is fewer than one-third of the total number of 
representatives of full members (excluding vacancies) present, there is no quorum unless at least thirteen 
membersa quorum of the Executive Committee are present as defined in section 5.5. 

(b) If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority of the representatives entitled 
to vote and present is the act of the General Assembly. 

Section 4.4 5 – Nominating Committee 

(a) At its summer or fall meeting each year the General AssemblyPrior to July 1st of each year, the Executive 
Committee shall appoint a seven-person Nominating Committee to nominate Executive Committee members 
and officers of the Council to serve during the following year. The Nominating Committee members serve for 
a year or until a new Nominating Committee, which may include members of the former Committee, is 
appointed. 

(b) A Nominating Committee member must be a General Assembly representative of a full member,  or an 
associate member, or a citizen representative. Two At least two Nominating Committee members must be 
Executive Committee members and at least two members must be General Assembly members not currently 
serving on the Executive Committee.  The chair of the Council shall serve as the Nominating Committee chair, 
or the vice chair in the absence of the chair. 

(b)(c) Each appointee serving on the Nominating Committee shall serve for no more than four consecutive 
years. 

(c)(d) The Nominating Committee shall nominate at least one qualified representative for each position on the 
Executive Committee. The Nominating Committee shall also nominate one Executive Committee member for 
each office of the Council. In making nominations to the Executive Committee, the Nominating Committee 
shall consider the economic, urban-rural, geographic, ethnic, and gender diversity of the Region and, insofar 
as possible, shall make its nominations to reflect this diversity. The Nominating Committee shall also 
consider the active participation of current Executive Committee members seeking reappointment. The 
Nominating Committee may also consider the timely payment of dues by the member.In the case of 
November elections, a person who has been elected but not sworn into office may be considered by the 
Nominating Committee contingent upon the candidate being designated as the General Assembly 
representative of that local government at the time of the General Assembly election. 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 6 of 13 

(e) The Nominating Committee shall solicit interest for service on the Executive Committee from all eligible 
General Assembly members. To be eligible for serviceappointment, General Assembly members 
representatives must be elected officials from cities and counties who are full members and who are 
officially designated by that city or county as the General Assembly representative. The Nominating 
Committee shall submit its nominations in writing for Executive Committee members to the Executive 
Director of the Council and the Executive Director shall furnish copies of the Nominating Committee report 
to each General Assembly representative during October of each year.  

(d)(f) A qualified representative who is not included on the slate of the Nominating Committee but wishes to 
be considered for election to the Executive Committee by the General Assembly may notify the Executive 
Director in writing no later than November 30th and specify which nominated representative he or she 
wishes to challenge. Nominations will not be accepted from the floor. A contested slot will be voted on 
separately from the Nominating Committee slate. 

(e)(g) The Nominating Committee shall submit its nominations in writing for the officers of the Council to the 
Executive Committee with the notice of the January Executive Committee meeting. The nominating 
committee shall, along with other factors as deemed appropriate, consider continuity of leadership when 
selecting the nominations for officers. 

(f)(h) In accordance with Local Government Code, Section 391.006(c), the Nominating Committee shall solicit 
interest for service on the Executive Committee from State Legislators whose districts are wholly or partly 
within the State Planning Region 12. 

(g)(i) Legislators eligible for membership on the Executive Committee may apply for membership on the 
Executive Committee by submitting a written request to the Nominating Committee. At least one eligible 
Legislator may serve in an ex-officio position on the Executive Committee. The Nominating Committee shall 
recommend at least one eligible State Legislator for an ex-officio, non-voting position on the Executive 
Committee when it submits nominations to the Executive Director during October of each year. 

Section 4.5 – General Responsibilities 

The General Assembly has the following general responsibilities: 

(a) to establish the overall policies and specific objectives of the Council; 

(b) to adopt an annual budget for the Council; 

(c) to create, appoint members to, fill vacancies in, and specify the duties of permanent committees of the 
General Assembly, not otherwise described in these bylaws, to assist in carrying out its responsibilities; 

(d) to review, on its own motion or at the request of the Executive Committee or any permanent committee 
of the General Assembly, any action of the Executive Committee or permanent committee. 

ARTICLE V – THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Section 5.1 – Governing Body 

The Executive Committee is the governing body of the Council between meetings of the General Assembly. 
Members of the Executive Committee shall also serve on the Board of Managers of the Capital Area Emergency 
Communications District (CAECD) as an additional duty. To the extent authorized by law, the Executive 
Committee will also serve as the governing body of any additional non-profit organization established by the 
Council. 

Section 5.2 – Composition 

(a) The composition of the Executive Committee is as follows: 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 7 of 13 

(1) two representatives from Travis County; 

(2) one representative from each of the other nine counties in State Planning Region 12; 

(3) one representative from the City of Austin; 

(4) one five representatives from a cityies with a population in excess of one hundredfifty thousand 
(10050,000); 

(5) four representatives from cities with populations between 25,000 and 100,000; 

(6)(5) five representatives from cities with populations under 2550,000; and 

(7)(6) three at-large members. 

(8)(7) at least one State of Texas Legislator in accordance with Local Government Code, Section 
391.006(c). 

(b) At each Annual Meeting, the General Assembly shall elect members from the categories described in 
Subsections (a) (1) through (76) of this section 5.2, from the candidates nominated by the Nominating 
Committee or announced in accordance with the requirements for consideration as described in section 
4.4(f).. 

(c) In selecting the medium-sized city, small city and at-large representatives, the General Assembly shall 
consider population and geography to ensure diversity among the members of the Executive Committee. 

(d) All of the Executive Committee members, except for the ex-officio State Legislator, must be elected officials 
of the governing bodies of the full members of the Council or representatives who have been elected and 
will take office during the term of their service on the executive committee. 

(e) An elected official of the governing body of a full member of the Council may complete his or her term on 
the Executive Committee if he or she was an elected official at the time of election to the Executive 
Committee and he or she continues as a representative on the General Assemblyunless or until removed 
from the General Assembly by the Member. 

(f) A State Legislator selected for the Executive Committee shall serve as an ex-officio member, will not be 
eligible to vote, to serve as an officer of the Council, or to serve on subcommittees, and will not count 
toward a quorum. 

Section 5.3 – Meetings 

(a) The Executive Committee shall meet regularly each month at a time and place specified by resolution. 

(b) The Executive Committee shall meet specially on call of the chairperson of the Council or upon the written 
request of at least one-third of the members of the Executive Committee. 

(b)(c) Regular meetings may be cancelled by the Chairperson, provided that the Executive Director confirms 
that no pressing business is required to be acted upon and the Chairperson provides at least two weeks 
notice of the cancellation. 

Section 5.4 – Notice 

Notice of regular and special meetings of the Executive Committee must comply with the Open Meetings Act. 

Section 5.5 – Quorum and Action 

(a) A quorum of the Executive Committee consists of a majority of the total number of membersnon-vacant 
positions., excluding vacancies, but a quorum may not consist of fewer than thirteen members. 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 8 of 13 

(b) If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present is the 
act of the Executive Committee. 

Section 5.6 – Term 

Executive Committee members serve one-year terms, beginning on the dateJanuary 1  they are electedfollowing 
their election to the Executive Committee and expiring on December 31. An Executive Committee member may 
complete his or her term if unless or until his or her successor is elected and the member continues to meet the 
requirements as set out in Section 5.2removed from the General Assembly by the Member. 

Section 5.7 – Vacancy 

(a) A vacancy on the Executive Committee occurs: 

(1) when a member dies; 

(2) when a member resigns; or 

(3) when a member is removed; 

(4)(3) when a member becomes disqualified to serve.; or 

(5) when a member incurs four absences as described in subsection (b). 

(b) If an Executive Committee member misses three Executive Committee meetings in a calendar year, the 
Executive Director shall notify the Executive Committee member in writing of the absences and that a fourth 
absence will vacate the member's position on the Executive Committee. If the Executive Committee member 
misses a fourth Executive Committee meeting, having received the Executive Director's notice, the Executive 
Committee shall declare the absent member's position on the Executive Committee vacant unless the 
member persuades the Executive Committee, at its next meeting, that there was good cause for the 
absence. 

(c) Executive Committee members shall also serve on the Board of Managers of the CAECD; a missed meeting of 
the CAECD shall be counted toward the absences described in (b). 

(d)(b) If a vacancy occurs on the Executive Committee, the Nominating Committee may nominate at the 
request of the Executive Committee, and the Executive Committee shall elect a replacement to serve for the 
remainder of the unexpired term if the vacancy occurs and the nomination process is completed no later 
than June 15 of that year. 

Section 5.8 – Powers and Responsibilities 

(a) The Executive Committee has the following general powers: 

(1) to sue and be sued in the name of the Council; 

(2)(1) to contract; 

(3)(2) to acquire, own, lease, transfer, or otherwise dispose of real and personal property, tangible or 
intangible, or any interest in it; 

(4)(3) to invest the Council's assets in real or personal property, tangible or intangible, or any interest 
in it; 

(5)(4) to sell, assign, mortgage, or pledge all or any part of the Council's real or personal property, or 
any interest in it; 

(6)(5) to borrow or lend money or other property; 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 9 of 13 

(6) to apply for, receive, and use contributions and grants.; 

(7) to sue in the name of the Council; and 

(7)(8) to create and oversee advisory committees as necessary to comply with grant programs and 
provide guidance on regional issues. 

(b) The Executive Committee has the following general responsibilities: 

(1) to have prepared, review, and submit adopt an annual budget for the Council to the General Assembly; 

(2) to designate one or more depositories for the Council's funds and specify the individuals authorized to 
sign and countersign checks and other instruments for withdrawal of the funds; 

(3) to receive, review, and, if necessary, act upon reports and recommendations of its subcommittees and of 
committees of the Council, and to notify the General Assembly of any action taken; 

(4) to make recommendations, formulate policy, and take action on matters referred to it by the General 
Assembly that best carry out the purposes of the Council.; 

(4)(5) To be sued in the name of the Council. 

Section 5.9 – Creation of Subcommittees 

(a) The Executive Committee by resolution may create one or more subcommittees and appoint members 
of the Executive Committee to serve on them. Each subcommittee may have three or more members 
who serve at the pleasure of the Executive Committee. 

(b) To the extent specified in the creating resolution, a subcommittee may exercise the Executive 
Committee’s powers and carry out its responsibilities described in Section 5.8. 

(c) The Executive Committee in the creating resolution shall appoint officers of the subcommittee from 
among its members and shall describe the meeting, quorum, and voting requirements for the 
subcommittee. 

ARTICLE VI – OFFICERS OF THE COUNCIL 

Section 6.1 – Election  

(a) The Executive Committee shall elect from among its members, with the advice from the Nominating 
Committee per section 4.4(g), a chairperson, first and second vice-chairperson, a secretary, and a 
parliamentarian of the Council. The parliamentarian position may be jointly held by another officer other 
than the chairperson. 

(b) The Executive Committee shall elect the officers at the regular January meeting, or as soon thereafter as 
practicable. 

(b)(c) The Immediate Past Chairperson shall serve as an officer. 

Section 6.2 – Term 

(a) Officers of the Council serve one-year terms, beginning on the date they are electedJanuary 1 following their 
election and expiring on December 31.  An officer whose term expires continues to serve until his or her 
successor is elected. 

(b) The Executive Committee may remove an officer for cause upon two-thirds vote of the total number of 
members of the Committee, vacancies excluded. Removal The reasons for removal of the officer must be 
described in the agenda for the meeting at which removal will be considered. 

(c) An officer may not serve more than two consecutive full terms in the same office. 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 10 of 13 

Section 6.3 – Vacancy 

In case of vacancy in an office, as determined under Section 5.7, the Nominating Committee may upon the 
request of the Executive Committeechairperson, nominate a replacement and the Executive Committee shall 
elect a replacement from among its members at a regular or special meeting. The replacement serves for the 
remainder of the unexpired term. 

ARTICLE VII – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND STAFF 

Section 7.1 – Executive Director 

(a) The Executive Committee shall employ an Executive Director, who is qualified by training and experience, to 
faithfully carry out the duties delegated to him or her by the General Assembly and the Executive 
Committee. The Executive Director serves at the pleasure of the Executive Committee. 

(b) The Executive Director is the chief administrative officer of the Council and, subject to its policies and 
directives, acts for and in the name of the Council. Only the Executive Director, chairperson, or first vice-
chairperson or their designee is authorized to contract on behalf of the Council in accordance with the 
Procurement Policy. 

(c) Among other duties, the Executive Director shall: 

(1) appoint and remove all employees of the Council; and 

(2) prepare the Council's annual budget and submit it to the Executive Committee for review, 
recommendation, and submission to the General Assembly. 

ARTICLE VIII – FINANCES 
Section 8.1 – Annual Dues 
(a) Each member of the Council shall pay annual dues according to the following schedule: 

(1) Counties:  5 cents per capita based on the most recent population estimates determined under Section 
9.4, minimum of $50.00. 

(2) Municipalities:  10 cents per capita based on the most recent population estimates determined under 
Section 9.4, minimum of $50.00. 

(3) School districts:  5 cents per capita for enrollment up to 2,500; plus 2 cents per capita for enrollment 
between 2,500 and 10,000; plus 1 cent per capita for enrollment in excess of 10,000.  The minimum dues 
for a school district are $50.00, and the maximum dues are $500.00. 

(4) Special-purpose governmental districts (including but not limited to Municipal Utility Districts Water 
Control Improvement Districts), except public utilities:  $125.00. 

(5) Public Utilities:  $500.00. 

(6) Other agencies and organizations:  $200.00. 

(7) Sustaining members:  $100.00 minimum. 

(b) The General Assembly upon recommendation of the Executive Committee may amend the schedule of dues 
set out in subsection (a) in conjunction with reviewing and adopting the annual budget. The amendment may 
be made effective only for the budget year or permanently. 

(c) General Assembly members representing a city or county that has not paid annual dues by December 1st 
may not be elected to the Executive Committee. 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 11 of 13 

Section 8.2 – Special Assessment 

In case of emergency, the General Assembly, upon recommendation a resultion of the Executive Committee 
passed by a two-thirds vote, may adopt a schedule of special assessments for all members or for specified 
categories of members. 

Section 8.3 – Nonpayment of Dues or Special Assessment 

(a) If a member does not pay its dues, or an installment of its dues authorized by Section 8.1, within three 
months after the dues or installment becomes due and payable, the Executive Committee by resolution may 
suspend the member from the Council until the member pays its dues or installment in full. If the member 
does not pay its dues or the installment within six months after the dues or installment becomes due and 
payable, the Executive Committee by resolution may expel the member from the Council. The member shall 
not be eligible for readmittance to the Council until they come current on any past-due balance. 

(b) If a member does not pay its special assessment within thirty days after the assessment becomes due and 
payable, the Executive Committee by resolution shall may suspend the member from the Council until the 
member pays its special assessment in full. If the member does not pay its special assessment within sixty 
days after the assessment becomes due and payable, the Executive Committee by resolution shall may expel 
the member from the Council. 

Section 8.4 – Annual Report and Audit 

(a) The Council shall prepare an annual report of its activities and furnish a copy of the report to the governing 
body of each member of the Council. 

(b) The Council shall obtain an annual audit, prepared by an independent certified public accountant in 
compliance with applicable federal and state law, of its performance, receipts, and expenditures.  The 
Council shall include a summary of the audit results in its annual report required by subsection (a). 

ARTICLE IX – MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 9.1 – Principal Office 

The Executive Committee shall determine the location of the Council's principal office by resolution. 

Section 9.2 – Fiscal Year 

The Executive Committee shall determine the Council's fiscal year by resolution. 

Section 9.3 – Books and Records 

(a) The Council shall keep at its principal office correct and complete minutes of the meetings of the General 
Assembly and its committees and of the Executive Committee and its subcommittees; accurate and complete 
financial records; and other appropriate records documenting the operations of the Council. 

(b) The Council's records are subject to the Texas Public Information Act. 

Section 9.4 – Determination of Population 

(a) Except as provided in subsection (b), the US Census Bureau annual mid-year estimates of population 
determine the representation and dues of full members and the actual population in the year the decennial 
results are released. 

(b) A full member may request the Executive Committee at its November meeting to use its own population 
estimate to determine its representation on the Council and the amount of its dues. The member must 



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 12 of 13 

document its request with evidence of utility connections or other reliable evidence of population. If the 
Executive Committee agrees to use the member's population estimate, the estimate will determine the 
member's representation at the Annual Meetings and the amount of the member's dues until publication of 
the next Census Bureau data. 

Section 9.5 – Amendment of Bylaws 

(a) If a quorum of full-member representatives is present, the General Assembly may amend these bylaws by 
majority vote of all the representatives entitled to vote in the General Assembly. 

(b) The written text of a proposed amendment must be furnished to each representative entitled to vote at least 
thirty calendar daystwo weeks before the day of the meeting at which the amendment will be considered. 

(c) An amendment is effective when adopted by the General Assembly unless the amendment specifies 
otherwise.  



CAPCOG Bylaws | Effective Date SeptDecember. 1410, 2022 2025 | Page 13 of 13 

Bylaws History 

• Adopted 6/70 

• Revised 10/74 

• Revised 9/79 

• Revised 4/81 

• Revised 9/98 

• Revised 1/04 

• Revised 8/04 

• Revised 11/08 

• Revised 4/09 

• Revised 8/10 

• Revised 12/10 

• Revised 9/11 

• Revised 12/11 

• Revised 12/12 

• Revised 9/13 

• Revised 12/14 

• Revised 9/15 

• Revised 9/18 

• Revised 9/21 

• Revised 9/22 

• Revised 12/25 

 
 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

 
MEETING DATE: September 17, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: 10. Consider Adoption of the 2026 CAPCOG Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP) 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF ITEM: 
 
Each year, the Homeland Security staff, Regional Training and Exercise and Planning Subcommittees, and regional 
stakeholders review and revise the CAPCOG Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP). The 2026 CAPCOG IPP, formerly 
known as the Multi-Year Training and Exercise Plan (MYTEP), consolidates the training and exercise-related 
information in the Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment (THIRA), Stakeholders Preparedness 
Report (SPR), and the Homeland Security Strategic Plan – Implementation Plan (HSSP-IP) to enhance the 
capabilities of CAPCOG jurisdictions to respond to threats and hazards across the preparedness cycle. 
 
Prior to submission for Executive Committee Review, the 2026 CAPCOG IPP will have been vetted and approved 
by the Homeland Security Task Force during their September 4, 2025, meeting. 
 
This year’s CAPCOG IPP planning efforts continued as a combination of virtual small group meetings.  
 
THIS ITEM REPRESENTS A: 

 New issue, project, or purchase 
 Routine, regularly scheduled item 
 Follow-up to previously discussed item 
 Special item requested by board member 
 Other 

 
PRIMARY CONTACT/STAFF MEMBER: Martin Ritchey, Homeland Security Director 
 
BUDGETARY IMPACT:  
 Total estimated cost:  N/A 
 Source of Funds:  N/A 
 Is item already included in fiscal year budget?  Yes  No 
 Does item represent a new expenditure? Yes No
 Does item represent a pass-through purchase? Yes No
 If so, for what city/county/etc.?        

PROCUREMENT: N/A 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
Consider adoption of the 2026 CAPCOG Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP). 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 

1. Summary of Changes 2026 CAPCOG Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP). 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS NOT ATTACHED (to be sent prior to meeting or will be a handout at the meeting): 

1. 2026 CAPCOG Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP) 



2026 CAPCOG Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP)
Summary of Changes 

 
Overall:

 Formatting and grammatical changes were made throughout the document 
 List of Integrated Planning Team members was updated  
 Added relevant acronyms and definitions 
 Changed document footer to reflect HSTF meeting date (will revise to reflect CAPCOG Executive 

Committee adoption date in final copy) 

Preparedness Priorities:
State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSP) priority areas were changed to reflect new National 
Priority Areas; specifically, the addition of “Supporting Homeland Security Task Forces and Fusion 
Centers” and “Supporting Border Crisis Response and Enforcement” and the deletion of “Combating 
Violent Domestic Extremism (VDE)” and “Enhancing Community Preparedness and Resilience”.  
 
Corresponding Capabilities: 
No changes to these capabilities 

Rationale: 
 Revised to reflect SHSP documents, where applicable 

Planning Factors: 
 Revised to include changes in SHSP and National Priority Areas, where applicable 

Organization and Equipment Factors: 
 Revised to include changes in National Priority Areas, where applicable 

Supporting Training Courses: 
 Revised to include new training information and recommendations, where applicable 

Supporting Exercises: 
 Deleted FY 2025 exercise information 
 Added FY 2026-2028 known exercise information 

Program Reporting: 
No changes to the capacities listed. 

Multi-Year Schedule of Preparedness Activities: 
 Deleted FY 2025 activities 
 Revised FY 2026 – 2028 activities 

Identified Training List: 
 Added additional training information 



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING DATE: September 17, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: 11. Consider Approving Appointments to Advisory Committees 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF ITEM: 
This is the monthly item for filling positions on CAPCOG’s advisory committees. Please let us know if our staff can 
assist in identifying interested persons to serve. It is presumed that both city and county representatives will 
collaborate when making appointments. 
 
THIS ITEM REPRESENTS A: 

 New issue, project, or purchase 
 Routine, regularly scheduled item 
 Follow-up to a previously discussed item 
 Special item requested by board member 
 Other 

 
PRIMARY CONTACT/STAFF MEMBER:  Andrew Hoekzema, Director of Administrative Services 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: 
Total estimated cost:  N/A 
Source of Funds:  N/A 
Is item already included in fiscal year budget?  Yes   No 

 Does item represent a new expenditure?  Yes   No 
 Does item represent a pass-through purchase?  Yes   No 
 If so, for what city/county/etc.?        

PROCUREMENT: N/A 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
Approve recommended advisory committee appointments 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Advisory Committee Vacancy Memo 
 
BACK-UP DOCUMENTS NOT ATTACHED: 

1. Advisory Committee Rosters and Attendance Records 
2. Nomination Forms for Recommended Appointments 



6800 Burleson Road, Building 310, Suite 165
Austin, Texas 78744

Ph: 512-916-6000 Fax: 512-916-6001
www.capcog.org

BASTROP BLANCO BURNET CALDWELL FAYETTE HAYS LEE LLANO TRAVIS WILLIAMSON

Advisory Committee Vacancies and Recommended Appointments | September 4, 2025 | Page 1 of 1

MEMORANDUM
September 4, 2025

TO: Executive Committee

FROM: Andrew Hoekzema, CAPCOG Director of Administrative Services

RE: Advisory Committee Vacancies and Recommended Appointments

CAPCOG’s advisory committees have the following vacancies:

Aging Advisory Council (AAC)*:
o Burnet County (1 vacancy since November 2021);

Criminal Justice Advisory Committee (CJAC):
o City of Austin (1 vacancy out of 3 seats since March 2023);

Economic Development Advisory Committee (EDAC):
o 4 vacancies, all at-large;

Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC):
o Travis County (1 vacancy since June 30, 2025); and
o Williamson County (1 vacancy since July 17, 2025).

We have not received any nominations for these vacancies as of the date of this memo. Nominations for filling 
vacancies and changes to appointments may also be made at the meeting itself. If you have someone you would 
like to nominate for a position, please request a nomination form and submit it to Shaun Seale at 
sseale@capcog.org.

Note that that there are special requirements for the composition of some committees that need to be met that 
may constrain who is able to be appointed. Please contact the relevant staff contact for the committee if you 
have questions about a potential nominee’s eligibility.

*Please note that we are able to count AAC meeting participation as an in-kind match for administration of our 
Area Agency on Aging, reducing the amount of local cash match required from CAPCOG’s budget.




